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Corporate Information (Continued)
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. Financial Highlights
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N\ EEE

2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREBTT ARBTRT AR®ETR
Operating results ReExE
Revenue Wz 26,166 532,480 950,079 1,096,071
Gross profit EF 3,232 61,119 129,770 152,507
Profit before tax Rk %5 AT i A 529 50,919 93,812 86,638
Profit for the year FE AN 276 42,987 80,129 69,441
Profit attributable to owners of KNAREER AR
the Company il 138 36,539 69,367 69,614
Profitability EF|
Gross margin (%) FEFE(%) 12.4% 11.5% 13.7% 13.9%
Net profit margin (%) 4 F (%) 1.0% 8.1% 8.4% 6.3%
Financial position BRI
Total assets BEE 122,766 376,845 441,214 464,216
Total equity R 5,069 48,356 123,485 193,554
Total liabilities HEE 117,697 328,489 317,729 270,662
Gearing ratio (%) BELEE(%) 66% 42% 21% 18%
Equity attributable to equity RAEIERFEBA
owners of the Company JE(E R 4,308 40,847 105,214 193,428
Cash and cash equivalents BERESZED 30,069 44,455 70,216 60,206
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO TOTAL ASSETS
Wz OWNERS OF THE COMPANY mEE
RME000 DTS AR R RME'000
AREETF T RMB’000 AREFTT
ARBFIT
1,200,000 - 80,000 500,000 464,216
110%6.071 - 69,367 69,614 441,214
1.000000 950,079 ' 400,000{ 376,845
60,000 -
800,000 50000k
/ 300,000
600,000 532,480 40,000 - 36,539
400,000 - 3000017 e
' 122,766
20,000
200000k ol 100,000
26,166 138
0 L1 - 1 - 0 - S
2012 2013 2014 2015 2012 2013 2014 2015 2012 2013 2014 2015
Notes: Hat -
(1) The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the year (1) #HZE20124F - 2013F M2014F 12 A3 B I FENEE L EE

ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were extracted
from the Prospectus. The above summary covers the last four
years, rather than five years, since the Company only listed on
10 March 2016 and financial information for the year ended 31
December 2011 has not been published by the Company.

HBEERERHEEBRE - ARARFN2016F3/81085 £
o BYARDHEZE2011F12831 B IHFERNMEER - Hult
LA R (80 25 0 A PU 6 1 3E R F B RS B -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the audited annual results
of the Company for the Reporting Period.

The Company achieved remarkable development in recent years. With
an aim to further expand its business and step forward and lay a solid
foundation for future development, the Company was successfully listed
on the Main Board of the HKSE in March 2016. During the Reporting
Period, we proactively grasped opportunities arising in the market and
maintained a rapid growth in operating results. The revenue of the
Company for 2015 amounted to RMB1,096.1 million.

Apart from the one of the leading MPCM services providers in the
pharmaceutical industry in China, the Company is also the only MPCM
services provider for plasma-based pharmaceuticals in China, which have
been one of the fastest growing segments in the pharmaceutical market
in China. Driven by the unmet demand for plasma-based pharmaceuticals,
favourable government initiatives, market development as well as
technology improvements in the manufacturing process in China, the
plasma-based pharmaceutical product market is expected to grow at a
compound annual growth rate of 22.4% from 2015 to 2019, according
to the Frost & Sullivan Report.

Our experienced management team has a indepth understanding of
China’s imported pharmaceutical market, especially for plasma-based
pharmaceuticals. We have developed and implemented a rigorous and
effective screening process to identify suitable products that offer strong
market potential in China’s imported pharmaceutical market. Our product
portfolio is populated by a selection of imported pharmaceutical products
in the plasma segment as well as other fast-growing or highly recognized
segments in China. The growth of some of the market segments to which
our portfolio products belong, namely, oncology and haematology, has
exceeded the overall growth of pharmaceuticals in China during the past
five years.

China has the world’s largest population, a fast-growing economy, a
growing middle-class with diverse healthcare needs and a comprehensive
healthcare reform plan currently in place; all of which have contributed to
significant growth and continuing upside potential in the pharmaceutical
market in China. In addition, the policies of the Chinese government
have also fueled the growth of the pharmaceutical market. For example,
there have been increased government efforts to improve the availability
and affordability of healthcare through investments in the construction
of public hospitals and the expansion of the medical insurance system
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHRE (A)

and to reduce regional inequality between the advanced urban areas
of China’s coast and the underserved lower-tier cities and rural areas in
other parts of China. Among all the pharmaceutical categories, plasma-
based pharmaceuticals, and imported plasma-based pharmaceuticals
in particular, have experienced higher growth than the overall Chinese
pharmaceutical market, and have proven to be one of the most
attractive segments of China’s pharmaceutical market. As we have
strategically focused on offering Human Albumin Solution, an imported
plasma-based pharmaceutical, we have enjoyed strong growth and
we expect to continue its growth trajectory. Chinese patients generally
consider imported pharmaceuticals to be of higher quality compared to
domestically-produced products, and for some types of pharmaceuticals,
such as plasma-based pharmaceuticals, the domestically-manufactured
supply is insufficient to meet market demand. We expect the market’s
preference for imported pharmaceuticals to continue, and as a result,
demand for imported pharmaceuticals will increase alongside the overall
projected growth of the Chinese market. The business of the Company is
well positioned to benefit from these trends and circumstances.

In respect of sales and promotion, the Company plans to strengthen our
position as China’s largest MPCM services provider for imported plasma-
based pharmaceuticals by leveraging our established and extensive sales
network and deepening our long-term partnership with Octapharma.
We also plan to continue to strengthen our promotional efforts and
expand our distribution network. We have developed an information
management system and a series of initiatives, including plans to grow
our in-house MPCM team and to invest more in training programmes
for them. We also plan to increase our purchases of Human Albumin
Solution from Octapharma to further fulfil the strong demand from
Chinese patients and clinicians. In respect of product portfolio, we intend
to further enrich our product portfolio to achieve synergies from our
integrated service platform. In respect of the establishment of MPCM
team, we aim to further penetrate China’s pharmaceutical market
by utilising distributors closer to patients and expanding our medical
institution coverage. We plan to use our working capital to establish four
regional sales offices covering south China, west China, east China and
north China to supervise employees in their respective regions. We intend
to streamline our distributor network and shift focus from provincial level
distributors to local city level distributors further down the sales channel
to be closer to hospitals and patients, in order to gain more knowledge of
local markets, hospital procurement procedures and physician and patient
preferences. With an aim to promote our products, we will increase
participation in academic seminars in hospitals. In respect of information
management, we intend to further invest to maintain and upgrade our
information management systems to enhance our operating efficiency.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FERE (E)

Through upgrading our information management system, we will be
able to have throughout study of regional markets and grasp updated
and accurate data on sales and inventory. In respect of construction of
facilities and technology of research and development, we aim to facilitate
multi-channel growth and evolve ourselves into a vertically-integrated
company through investing in our own cold chain facility, research and
development base as well as product research and development. If
presented with appropriate opportunities, we may also acquire medical,
pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical companies with proprietary
intellectual property rights, products or technologies in the plasma-related
sectors to complement our current business operations. We currently have
not identified any acquisition targets. In respect of internal management,
adhering to our corporate values of “integrity, collaboration, innovation
and excellence”, we have been persisting in innovation and the pursuit of
excellence for the development of high quality pharmaceutical products
and medical services. Our management and employees have strived to
achieve the goal of being a leading and professional biopharmaceutical
company with their gratitude and professionalism.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my appreciation for
the faithful services and contribution from all employees in the Reporting
Period. | would also like to express my gratitude to all Shareholders and
business partners for their long-term supports and trusts. We will make
persistent efforts to strive for excellent performance in return for the
supports of all Shareholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

30 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWN D

i

Business Review

1.

Improvement and expansion of our product portfolio
During the Reporting Period, our product portfolio further expanded
from six products to seven products. Our product portfolio includes
plasma-based products and products in other fast-growing or
sizeable therapeutic areas.

During the Reporting Period, the Group further enhanced our
relationship with Octapharma, which is one of the world’s leading
manufacturers of plasma-based pharmaceuticals. In August 2015,
Octapharma has confirmed our Group is the exclusive service
provider for Human Albumin Solution in 24 provinces, municipalities
and autonomous regions in China. In addition, we entered into
a supplemental agreement to the distribution agreement with
Octapharma in October 2015 whereby Octapharma acknowledged
that (i) it expects to increase the volume of Human Albumin
Solution to be delivered to us from 2015 to 2019; (i) annual price
negotiations would be conducted in good faith to ensure, to the
extent commercially practicable to Octapharma, that we receive a
reasonable profit margin broadly in line with our historical profit
margins; and (i) a six-month notice period is required for either
us or Octapharma to terminate the distribution agreement, if the
parties cannot agree on the purchase price of Human Albumin
Solution for the next year. The amendment and the supplemental
agreement indicate a high level of sustainability of our relationship
with Octapharma and Octapharma’s commitment and support to
foster a long-term relationship with us.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

%EEEE{I-%% *ﬁ-(lna)

On the other hand, the Group continued to enrich our product
portfolio: we further obtained the exclusive rights to supply
Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina in China from Trendful, the exclusive
sales agent of Bruschettini and Foscama in China in March 2015;
and in September 2015, we became the exclusive service provider
of Xinneng Q,, for Liaoning Wanjia in China for a term of ten years
from October 2015 to December 2025. We have started providing
services for Xinneng Q,, from December 2015. With new products
included in our product portfolio, we can expand our product variety
for the existing branches of medicine for oncology and haematology,
and also spread our marketing, promotion and channel
management to branches of medicine for hepatobiliary disease and
gastroenterology. The following table sets forth a breakdown of
our revenue by product categories and as a percentage of our total
revenue for the Reporting Period:

S—FHHE ASEETEHEEERAESE - 12015
FIANE B A RIS P EIB R HE N E
REBESHEHER FTREAEBREFENE
FALMERE - 2015F9 7 » BRI AEEEE AL
Qi BIMERRIEHIER - B2015F10AE
2025F 12 A BB+ - ®BMIN2015F12 AR
RESEEQ MR - FTMIEMSIA - MEATA
EMAEEEE AR EF (ERRRMAER) 8@
EEE - RSB ERMOEE  EERRBEEE
FIEREEIIE - BERERE - TREYI®
HHASHEERORGERELIEMNE D L
“

For the year ended 31 December

HENANABLEE
2015 2014
Revenue % of Revenue Revenue % of Revenue
kE  EREEAR Wi EREESKR
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT
Human Albumin Solution AMAZEFTER 668,007 60.9 628,575 66.2
Antibiotics (Axetine and Medocef) NER(ZAMK
EEY) 316,312 289 307,073 323
Others (Taurolite, TAD, Esafosfina and Xinneng Q,)) E(ERER « &5
BEERBRGHQ) 111,752 10.2 14,431 15
Total @t 1,096,071 100.0 950,079 100.0

Some of our products have been sold in the market for several years,
such as Human Albumin Solution, Axetine and Medocef, which
recorded a steady growth in their sales. From 2014 to 2015, our
sales of Human Albumin Solution and Antibiotics grew at a rate of
6.3% and 3.0% respectively.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENRR D (&

Although Taurolite, TAD, Esafosfina and Xinneng Q,, account for
a relatively low percentage of our total revenue, our Group has
increased academic promotion activities, such as academic seminars,
to promote their clinical profiles and benefits to clinicians, and
organised more national and regional academic seminars to enhance
the market status and brand awareness for these products. During
the Reporting Period, our revenue from the other products was
RMB111.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 676.4%
and accounting for 10.2% of the Group's revenue.

In order to further expand our product portfolio, we have engaged
Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco 1", a realgar-
based chemical medicine intended to treat acute promyelocytic
leukaemia. Sinco | is classified as a class | chemical medicine,
a category of new medicine which has never been launched
in China or other countries. The approval process of a class |
chemical medicine usually takes more than eight years, involving
investigational new drug application and multiple phases of clinical
studies before commercial launch. We expect that the pre-clinical
research and pilot experiments for Sinco | will be completed by
December 2016. During the Reporting Period, our research and
development expenses to develop Sinco | were RMB3.0 million (2014:
RMB1.7 million).

Development of our marketing network

Being one of our core competitiveness, marketing network is also
a safeguard for our development. In addition to expanding our
product portfolio, the Group is also dedicated in the strategic
planning and development of our marketing network.

As of 31 December 2015, we had a nationwide network of 191
distributors across 31 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in China, representing a slight increase as compared with
186 distributors as of 31 December 2014. We discontinued our
relationships with 85 distributors, because we focused our resources
to distributors with better sales performance and wider hospital
coverage, and some of these distributors did not fulfil our distributor
requirements, such as marketing and promotion ability or obtaining
valid pharmaceutical permits.

We have expanded our network of distributors to access over 3,000
hospitals and other medical institutions across China. As of 31
December 2015, sales of the products in our portfolio achieved wide
distribution among hospitals nationwide, covering more than 927
Class Il hospitals, 1,180 Class Il hospitals and 357 Class | hospitals,
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENRR D (&

in addition to over 715 pharmacies and other medical institutions.
With our marketing and promotion model, the Group can market
and promote various products in various regions across China to
expand the geographical coverage of our products by fully utilizing
the extensive experience and extensive coverage of our distributors.
We can also maintained the flexibility of our business operation and
reduced fixed costs, marketing and promotion expenses. In addition,
the Group enhanced the training and support to our distributors by
our internal marketing team. We also participate in the management
of daily sales of our distributors by further refining information
management system.

The Group has continuously strengthened the professional training
for our employees in addition to expanding our marketing network.
During the Reporting Period, the Group started a new round of
recruitment in schools, and carried our large scale of recruitment
and trainings for our new employees by various innovative methods
to fulfill the demand for marketing personnel resulting from the
expansion of marketing network and market segmentation.

Business Expansion

In anticipation of our business expansion and more stringent laws
and regulations for plasma-based product warehousing, we are
constructing a cold chain facility and a research and development
base in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province with a gross
floor area of 87,000 square metres. We are constructing the cold
chain facility to meet growing demand for cold chain storage, better
control of safety and quality of the plasma-based product and reduce
future warehousing costs in our portfolio. The cold chain facility will
be constructed in two phases. The first phase of the premises, which
includes 15,000 square metres of cold chain storage, will be solely
for our own use and upon completion of the second phase, which
will include 25,000 square metres of cold chain storage and 47,000
square metres of research and development base, we may provide
cold chain storage services for pharmaceutical products to third
parties. We completed the construction of the first phase of the
premises in December 2015 and expect to complete the construction
of the second phase by the end of 2018. As of 31 December 2015,
we have invested RMB69.4 million in the construction of cold chain
facility and research and development base.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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Major investments

On 12 March 2015, Beijing Ziguang entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals (”Beijing Ziguang
Agreement”), pursuant to which Beijing Ziguang agreed to transfer
the entire equity interest in Linzhi Ziguang through the transfer of
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Chengdu Hengsheng”) to Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals for
a consideration of RMB35 million, which was determined based
on arm’s length commercial negotiations and the expected tax
benefit to be received. The consideration under the Beijing Ziguang
Agreement consists of (i) a deposit in the sum of RMB5 million to be
settled within five working days of the date of the Beijing Ziguang
Agreement; (ii) a first instalment in the sum of RMB12.5 million
to be settled when certain conditions (including but not limited
to obtaining a new business licence which includes “biological
products” in the scope of business) have been satisfied; and (iii) a
second instalment in the sum of RMB17.5 million to be settled (a)
within ten days after the Listing on the HKSE or (b) within six months
after the conditions set out in the Beijing Ziguang Agreement having
been satisfied, whichever was earlier. Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
has paid the deposit in the sum of RMB5.0 million on 18 March
2015, and partially settled RMB3.0 million of the first instalment on
30 December 2015 and the remaining RMB9.5 million of the first
instalment is expected to be paid in the second quarter of 2016 after
the new business licence is obtained.

Through the acquisition of Linzhi Ziguang, the Group is entitled to
certain tax benefits by operating through Linzhi Ziguang which is
located in the Tibet Autonomous Region. Pursuant to the Notice
Issued by the Government of the Tibet Autonomous Region
Regarding the Publication of Implementation Rules of Enterprise
Income Tax Policy of the Tibet Autonomous Region, an enterprise
established in the Tibet Autonomous Region, such as Linzhi Ziguang,
is temporarily exempted from the local portion of the enterprise
income tax and is entitled to a reduced enterprise income tax rate
of 9% up to the end of 2017. Aside from the tax benefit mentioned
above, the reason for the acquisition of Linzhi Ziguang was to further
strengthen our commercial presence and expand our distribution
network in Western China including the Tibet Autonomous Region.
The Group has already begun transferring its primary business
operation to Linzhi Ziguang in relation to the sale of Axetine in June
2015 and Medocef in September 2015.

Save as aforementioned, there were no significant investment held
by the Company, nor were any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Reporting
Period.
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Major financial performance indicators

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a relatively satisfactory
growth. The total revenue of the Group increased by 15.4% to
RMB1,096.1 million (2014: RMB950.1 million); the gross profit increased
by 17.5% to RMB152.5 million (2014: RMB129.8 million). The net profit
of the Group decreased by 13.4% to RMB69.4 million in 2015 from
RMB80.1 million in 2014, which was primarily due to the listing expenses
incurred in 2015. If the Listing fee was added back, the net profit of
the Group would reach to be RMB83.6 million. The increase of total
revenue was mainly attribute to (i) an increase in the revenue from the
sales of Taurolite, TAD and Esatosfina as a result of market promotion
implemented by the Group, coupled with the exclusive distribution rights
to supply Taurolite, TAD and Esatosfina obtained by the Group in March
2015; and (i) an increase in the sales of Human Albumin Solution arising
from the increase in sales volume from 2.1 million bottles in 2014 to 2.2
million bottles in 2015 as a result of continued strong market demand.

The financial position of the Group has been healthy. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash generated from operation
amounted to RMB46.2 million (2014: RMB53.1 million).

We have been maintained a relatively short turnover days for our
inventory and trade payables. In 2015, our inventory turnover days was 28
days, representing a decrease as compared with 56 days in 2014. In order
to maintain a healthy cash flow and enhance our operation management,
we require full prepayment for purchases from all of our customers. Our
trade payables turnover days was 16 days.

Future development

2016 will be the first financial year of the Group after its Listing on
the Main Board of the HKSE. Under the pressure of policies for the
pharmaceutical industry and the complicated and volatile market
situation, the Group will continue to consolidate our leading position
in providing marketing, promotion and channel management services
in imported plasma-based pharmaceutical market in China. Through
expanding and optimizing our product portfolio, developing and refining
our sales network, strengthening our marketing, promotion and channel
management team, the Group will realize its sustainable development.

With our existing extensive distributing network, the Group plans to
consolidate our position as China’s largest MPCM service provider for
imported plasma-based pharmaceuticals by deepening our penetration
in China’s pharmaceutical market and our long-term cooperation with
Octapharma. In addition, as a professional pharmaceutical MPCM service
provider, we intend to further expand our product portfolio with high
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potential in the domestic pharmaceutical market. In particular, we intend
to focus on therapeutic areas targeting the patients who use plasma-
based pharmaceuticals to achieve operational synergies. In addition to
products that have already been launched in the market, we are also
identifying pharmaceutical products with good effectiveness and patent
protection which are significant to overseas market and are in the later
research stage (i.e. products which are prepared to conduct, carrying out
or completed Phase Il clinical trials). We believe that our prior experience
in selecting high-growth products through our focused product screening
process, our track record in driving sales growth for the products in our
portfolio, as well as our in-depth understanding of China’s pharmaceutical
market will enable us to continue to identify products with significant
growth potential.

We believe the overall China’s pharmaceutical market and its imported
pharmaceutical market will continue to grow rapidly. To fully benefit from
the opportunities presented by the market, by early 2016, we have grown
our in-house marketing, promotion and channel management team from
68 as of 31 December 2015 to approximately 120 employees. By growing
our team, we hope to achieve more on-the-ground coverage of local sales
networks and move down our sales channel closer to patients. We also
plan to increase our sales coverage of hospitals, medical institutions and
pharmacies to broaden our network as we expand our product portfolio.
We plan to use our working capital to establish four regional sales
offices covering south China, west China, east China and north China to
supervise employees in their respective regions. These regional sales offices
will be primarily responsible for selecting and managing distributors,
which is currently undertaken by our headquarters in Chengdu, Sichuan
Province. We intend to streamline our distributor network and shift focus
from provincial level distributors to local city level distributors further
down the sales channel to be closer to hospitals and patients, in order to
gain more knowledge of local markets, hospital procurement procedures
and physician and patient preferences.

We plan to continue investing to maintain and upgrade our information
management systems to enhance our operating efficiency. We plan to
supplement our existing ERP information management system with an
advanced customer relationship management system, or CRM system, to
allow us to originate orders automatically once placed online, retrieve up-
to-date data on orders, sales and inventory, and manage and monitor our
procurement, sales and inventory levels more accurately and efficiently.
We believe that by upgrading our information management systems,
we will be able to perform more in-depth regional market analyses and
provide more timely and accurate data on sales and inventory to our
suppliers.
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To better control the safety and quality of our plasma-based products
and to reduce warehousing costs, and taking account of the decrease
of the number of qualified cold chain warehousing service provider due
to our business expansion and more stringent laws and regulations for
plasma-based product warehousing, we are constructing an advanced
cold chain facility in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, which
will include advanced climate control technology and a sophisticated
quality control system, so as to better manage our product quality and to
mitigate operational risks arisen from the shortage of cold chain facilities.
We completed the construction of the first phase of the premises in
December 2015 and expect to complete the construction of the second
phase by the end of 2018 according to our business development.

Risk Management

The Company believes that risk management is essential to the Group's
efficient and effective operation. The Company’s management assists
the Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group's
business, including investment risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk etc, and
participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and to ensure its implementation in daily operational
management.

Important relationship

1. Our Employees
Human resources is one of the most important assets of the Group.
The Group puts emphasis on training and career development for
our employees and are committed to building an effective and
dedicated fundamental team. For the Reporting Period, we had 130
full-time employees, representing an increase of 37 as compared
with 2014. Among which, we had 68 experienced in-house
marketing, promotion and channel management employees, more
than half of whom have over five years of professional experience in
pharmaceutical sales. The table below sets forth a breakdown of our
total number of employees by function as of 31 December 2015:
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The Group strives to motivate our employees by providing them
with a clear career path as well as comprehensive and professional
training courses. We provide pre-employment training, in-
service training and promotion opportunities, including training
courses for project management, product knowledge, drug’s
quality specifications and customer services, as well as external
training opportunities and courses of Master degree of Business
Administration. We conduct an internal satisfaction survey every
year and consider carefully employees’ feedback on operating
efficiency and harmony working environment. In addition, we
also offer competitive remuneration packages to our employees,
including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance-based
incentives.

To prevent corrupt practices and other malpractice among our
employees, we have set up stringent internal control policies
including marketing and promotion expense reimbursement
policies, books and records maintenance policies and anti-
corruption guidance that govern our employees’ conduct and
practice. Furthermore, as part of our internal control policy, we
have established robust policies and procedures on monitoring our
daily operations, including stringent internal rules on expenditure
pre-approvals and reimbursements for marketing and promotion
activities.

Our suppliers

We purchase pharmaceutical products from overseas suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and generate
revenue by on-selling them to our distributors. Our suppliers or
their sales agents have granted us the rights to market, promote
and manage sales channels for their products in China. We have
established stable relationships with all of our suppliers, including
Octapharma, Medochemie, Bruschettini, Foscama and Liaoning
Wanjia.

Our distributors

We sell our pharmaceutical products to distributors, who onsell
the products to hospitals and pharmacies either directly or through
their sub-distributors. Under the Group’s marketing and promotion
model, we appoint distributors in different sales regions to sell and
promote our products to hospitals and medical institutions. To
ensure the efficiency and stability of our marketing network, we
set up an in-house marketing team to manage and support our
distributors. Our marketing and promotional activities were carried
out by our own in-house team and distributors. Our in-house team is
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responsible for formulating marketing and promotion strategies and
promoting our products through various large marketing activities
across China. It also provides guidance, training and support to our
distributors and supervises their marketing activities. Our distributors
carry out more targeted field marketing activities based on the target
hospitals and detailed marketing and promotion schedules provided
by us. In 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, we had 11, 165, 186 and 191
distributors, respectively.

Environmental Protection Policies

Compliance with laws and regulations

We are primarily engaged in marketing, promoting and managing sales
channel for imported pharmaceutical products, a line of business that
generally does not have material impact on the environment. During the
Reporting Period, we did not incur any material cost of compliance with
applicable environmental laws and regulations.

We are constructing our cold chain facility and research and development
base located in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province.
Construction and operation of these premises are governed by national,
provincial and local environmental laws and regulations. Prior to
commencement of the construction, we were required to, among other
things, file an environmental assessment report and obtain the permission
of relevant environment protection bureau. Upon completion, our
premises will be subject to environment inspection. The primary wastes
generated from the operation of our premises will be waste water, and
we have obtained the response letter from Shuangliu County Water
Authority in relation to our request to dispose waste water when our
premises commence operation.

We have not been subject to any penalty or claim by any regulatory
authorities of competent jurisdiction for any breach of or non-compliance
with applicable environmental laws or regulations. Each of our Directors
has confirmed that, during the Reporting Period, he or she was not aware
of any material non-compliance by us with any applicable environmental
laws or regulations in the PRC.

Future and Outlook

The successful Listing of the Group on the Main Board of the HKSE
marks a major milestone as well as a new chapter of the Company. The
Group’s principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen its leading
position as a marketing, promotion and channel management service in
the PRC pharmaceutical industry, in particular, the imported plasma-based
pharmaceutical product market and to become a vertically integrated
leader in this industry.
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Looking ahead, the Group will further strengthen its leading market
position and consolidate its competitive advantages in the industry,
expanding the product portfolio to achieve synergies from integrated
services platform and continue to penetrate China’s pharmaceutical
market by expanding the Group’s marketing, promotion and channel
management team, utilizing distributors closer to patients and increasing
the Group’s medical institution coverage in order to match the increasing
demand of the plasma-based pharmaceutical market and creating more
values as well as bringing better return to Shareholders.

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue increased by 15.4% to RMB1,096.1 million for the Reporting
Period from RMB950.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
primarily due to the increase of total revenue was mainly attribute to (i)
an increase in the revenue from the sales of Taurolite, TAD and Esatosfina
as a result of market promotion implemented by the Group, coupled with
the exclusive distribution rights to supply Taurolite, TAD and Esatosfina
obtained by the Group in March 2015; and (ii) an increase in the sales of
Human Albumin Solution arising from the increase in sales volume from
2.1 million bottles in 2014 to 2.2 million bottles in 2015 as a result of
continued strong market demand.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by 15.0% to RMB943.6 million for Reporting
Period from RMB820.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
primarily due to an increase in revenue and the depreciation of the RMB
against the U.S. dollar.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by 17.5% to RMB152.5 million for the
Reporting Period from RMB129.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. Our gross profit margin increased to 13.9% for the Reporting
Period from 13.7% for the year ended 31 December 2014, primarily due
to an increase in the sales of higher gross margin products, including
Taurolite and TAD.

The gross profit margin on the sales of Human Albumin Solution
decreased to 12.1% in 2015 from 14.7% in 2014 mainly as a result of an
increase in our purchase price of Human Albumin Solution mainly caused
by the depreciation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar.
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The gross profit margin on the sales of Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina
increased significantly to 28.2% in 2015 from 10.8% in 2014, primarily
due to a decrease in the purchase price for these products following
our acquisition of the exclusive rights to service these products in China
in March 2015, partially offset by a decrease in the selling prices of
these products. We lowered the selling prices of these products in 2015
primarily due to a significant decrease in the cost of these products
following our acquisition of the exclusive rights to service these products
in China in March 2015 and our plan to increase the market share of
these products.

Other income and gains

Our other income and gains decreased to RMBO0.8 million for the
Reporting Period from RMB2.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 mainly due to (i) a decrease in bank interest income of RMB1.0
million generally in line with a decrease in our time deposits; and (ii) a
decrease in government grants of RMBO.5 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by 16.2% to RMB5.7
million for the Reporting Period from RMB6.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 mainly due to a decrease in marketing and
promotion expenses of RMB1.9 million as a result of the majority costs of
the marketing and promotion activities in respect of Taurolite, TAD and
Esafosfina being born by distributors in 2015. The decrease was partially
offset by an increase in staff costs and travelling expenses in aggregate of
RMBO0.8 million, which is in line with the Group’s business expansion.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased significantly to RMB40.5 million
for the Reporting Period from RMB17.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, primarily due to (i) Listing expenses of RMB14.2 million,
(i) an increase in depreciation of our headquarters following the transfer
from construction in progress to property in November 2014 of RMB3.3
million, and (iii) an increase in staff cost of RMB2.7 million generally in line
with our business expansion.

Other expenses

Our other expenses increased by 74.0% to RMB13.4 million for the
Reporting Period from RMB7.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, mainly as a result of an increase in the foreign exchange losses from
the depreciation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar during the Reporting
Period.
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Finance costs

Our finance costs increased to RMB7.1 million for the Reporting Period
from RMB6.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 primarily
due to an increase in interest on discounted bills receivable from RMBO.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB1.4 million for
the Reporting Period. Such increase was mainly due to a significant
increase in discounted bills receivable during 2015 in order to facilitate
our working capital position. Our needs for cash increased in 2015 as a
result of our acquisition of Linzhi Ziguang, the group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”), the construction of our cold chain facility and the
listing expenses.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 25.5% to RMB17.2 million for the
Reporting Period from RMB13.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. Our effective income tax rate in 2015 was 19.8% (2014: 14.6%).
The increase in our effective income tax rate in 2015 was primarily
because we incurred non-deductible listing expenses of RMB14.2 million.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year decreased by 13.4%
to RMB69.4 million for the Reporting Period from RMB80.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Net profit margin decreased from 8.4%
for 2014 to 6.3% for 2015, primarily because we incurred listing expenses
of RMB14.2 million in relation to the proposed listing of the Shares on the
HKSE in the year of 2015.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary uses of cash are to fund working capital, payment for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment and other recurring expenses
and to service indebtedness. During the Reporting Period, we funded our
cash requirements principally from cash generated from operations and
funds raised from bank borrowings.
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The following table is a condensed summary of our consolidated
statements of cash flows for the periods indicated and analysis of balances
of cash and cash equivalents as of the dates indicated:

TRAMRBNGERERERNERBE LT
RHRRE MR ESEMEERONT

For the year ended
31 December 2015

For the year ended
31 December 2014

BZE 2015 F #HE20145F

12 A31BLEE 12A318IEFE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Net cash from operating activities LEEEFTSIR G FEE 46,196 53,137

Net cash used in investing activities WEEESFTAR S F5 53,664 41,628

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities B EEFRE, (PR )RS F5E (3,068) 14,301
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash Ba RBeEEWENCRD)

equivalents FEE (10,536) 25,810

Cash and cash equivalents at FUReRREEEY

beginning of the year 70,216 44,455

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNP DEE SR S B ) 2 22 526 (49)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ EFXRIFLRIELZEY 60,206 70,216

Net cash from operating activities

The Group’s net cash from operating activities decreased to RMB46.2
million for the Reporting Period from RMB53.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. It primarily included (i) profit before tax of
RMB86.6 million; (ii) a decrease in inventories of RMB54.1 million due to
the increase in market demand of our products; (iii) an increase in trade
payables of RMB44.2 million due to the letters of credit becoming due
after the arrival of Human Albumin Solution; and (iv) non-cash expenses
namely depreciation and amortisation aggregating to RMB10.2 million.
The above factors were partially offset by (i) a decrease in advance from
customers of RMB94.7 million due to increase in market demand of our
products; (ii) an increase in bills receivable of RMB40.3 million due to the
increase in discounted bills receivable to facilitate our working capital
position; and (iii) tax paid of RMB13.9 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash used in investing
activities was RMB53.7 million compared to net cash used in investing
activities of RMB41.6 million in 2014, primarily due to (i) payment of
construction costs of RMB21.4 million in respect of the cold chain
facility located in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, (ii) the
acquisition of non-controlling interests in Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
of RMB14.0 million, (iii) purchases of property, plant and equipment of
RMB10.2 million relating to the renovations to the Group’s headquarters
located in Chengdu, Sichuan Province, and (iv) the acquisition of a
100% equity interest of Chengdu Hengsheng and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely, Linzhi Ziguang (”Linzhi Ziguang Group”) at a total
consideration of RMB35.0 million, of which RMB8.0 million was paid
during the Reporting Period.

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

During the Reporting Period, our net cash used in financing activities
was RMB3.1 million, primarily due to (i) repayment of bank loans of
RMB273.8 million; (ii) payment to a related party of RMB6.7 million for
the settlement of advances from a related party in support of inventory
purchases by Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding Limited (“Hong
Kong Prosperous”); and (iii) interest paid for bank loans of RMB7.1
million, partially offset by (i) proceeds from bank loans of RMB258.9
million; and (ii) advances from a related party of RMB25.6 million made
in support of inventory purchases by Hong Kong Prosperous, which were
settled in May 2015.
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Bank borrowings and gearing ratio

The Group had total bank borrowings of RMB81.9 million as of 31
December 2015 compared to RMB91.8 million as of 31 December
2014, which primarily included (i) secured and guaranteed bank loans
of RMB15.0 million with annual interest rates ranging from 5.98% to
7.0% granted by Bank of Chengdu which were pledged by the Group’s
buildings and guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin; (ii) a secured bank
loan of RMB30.0 million with an annual interest rate of 5.22% granted
by Bank of Shanghai which was pledged by 100% equity interests in
Linzhi Ziguang; (iii) secured bank loans of USD2.6 million (equivalent to
RMB16.9 million) with an annual interest rate of 0.8% above the 3-month
London InterBank Offered Rate granted by China Merchants Bank which
were pledged by the Group’s bills receivable of RMB19.8 million and time
deposit of RMBO.5 million; and (iv) a guaranteed bank loan of RMB20.0
million with an annual interest rate of 5.88% granted by Bank of China
which was guaranteed by Sichuan Development Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd., ("Sichuan Development”) an independent third party. The
Group's gearing ratio, calculated as net debt divided by the sum of total
equity and net debt, with net debt equal to interest-bearing bank loans
and amount due to a related party minus cash and cash equivalents, was
18.4% as of 31 December 2015 (2014: 21.5%).

Net current liabilities

As of 31 December 2015, the Group has net current liabilities of RMB51.7
million (2014: RMB29.6 million). In view of the net current liabilities
position, the Directors have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern.

Based on a detailed review of the working capital forecast of the Group,
the Directors are satisfied that the Group is able to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future. To mitigate any
liquidity issues that might be faced by the Group, the Group may curtail
or defer its expansion plans based on the availability of sufficient funds.
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Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets as current assets. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would result from the
failure of the Group to continue in business as a going concern.

Inventories

The Group’s inventory balances decreased to RMB46.6 million as of
31 December 2015 from RMB100.7 million as of 31 December 2014,
primarily due to the increase in market demand for our products,
particularly Human Albumin Solution, and the increase in inventory
turnover.

Bills receivable

The Group’s bill receivables increased to RMB77.2 million as of 31
December 2015 from RMB36.9 million as of 31 December 2014, primarily
due to the increase in the sales of Human Albumin Solution in 2015.
To maintain a healthy cash flow and better manage our business, we
require full prepayment from all of our customers before goods delivery.
Prepayment includes cash and 60-day bank’s acceptance bills in relation
to sales of Human Albumin Solution.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables increased to RMB62.8 million as of 31
December 2015 from RMB18.6 million as of 31 December 2014.
The increase in trade payables was mainly due to the letters of credit
becoming due after the arrival of Human Albumin Solution. The Group’s
trade payables turnover days increased to 16 days as of 31 December
2015 from 6 days as of 31 December 2014, primarily due to the increase
of balance of trade payables as of 31 December 2015.
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Capital expenditure
The following table sets out our capital expenditure for the years
indicated:

BRI
TRESIPAIRFERPINEARFAR -

For the year ended
31 December 2015

For the year ended
31 December 2014

BZE2015F #HE20145F
12A31ALEE 12A318LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BEMEHR
and intangible assets WA E 31,664 41,667
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1y =N 8,000 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of a BE RIS —RMIE AT
subsidiary from then shareholders HIFEFERR I i 14,000 -
Total st 53,664 41,667
Indebtedness &%
The following table sets out our bank loans, all of which were repayable  TXEFIFT/RBEMEITER @ 2AR —FRE
within one year, as of the dates indicated: B
As of 31 December  As of 31 December
2015 2014
A2015%12H31H 720149128318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Bank loans RITER
Secured and Guaranteed BEBEEER 15,000 37,000
Secured Vgl 46,915 -
Guaranteed BIER 20,000 54,788
81,915 91,788
Bank loans repayable within one year AR—FREENERITER 81,915 91,788
Capital commitments and contingent liabilities BEXREERIAERE

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total capital commitments of
RMB37.5 million (2014: RMB23.4 million), primarily related to construction
of new warehouse. At 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).
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Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group'’s
bank deposits and interest-bearing bank loans. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank loans are disclosed in note
22 to the financial statements.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising from
all of its interest-bearing loans through the use of floating rates or a mix
of floating and fixed rates. The Group also holds certain borrowings at
floating interest rate so as to manage part of the fair value interest rate
risk. In addition, the Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge
against interest rate risk.

As of 31 December 2015, floating interest rate borrowings accounted for
about 21% (2014: 78%) of the Group's borrowings, and fixed interest
rate borrowings accounted for about 79% (2014: 22%) of the Group's
borrowings. Management would adjust the proportion of floating rate
borrowings based on changes in the market interest rates to reduce the
significant impact of the interest rate risk.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the market interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s consolidated pre-tax profit would have decreased/increased
by approximately RMB819,000 (2014: RMB918,000) for the Reporting
Period, and there would be no impact on other components of the
consolidated equity, except for retained earnings, of the Group. The
sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change
in market interest rates had occurred at the end of the year and had
applied the exposure to interest rate risk to those financial instruments in
existence at those dates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s purchase of products from the overseas suppliers is
denominated in US$ and Euro. Most of the Group's assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and cash
equivalents, prepayments, deposits and bank loans that are denominated
in US$ and Euro.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage the
potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management monitors the
Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when the need arises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change in
RMB against US$ and Euro. The 5.0% is the rate used when reporting
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in the
foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of each reporting period have been
determined based on the adjustment of translation of the monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period for a 5.0%
change in RMB against US$ and Euro, respectively, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 (due to changes in the fair value of cash and
cash equivalents, prepayments, deposits and bank loans denominated in
US$ and Euro):

TRINRARKE R 37T R EITIE & & $)5.0% B §U%
Eoﬂ%ﬂm%mIEEEAéiﬁ%EHA%%
L REREHSEIEERSHTE - AEE
REWEBREEMINER B BRE ST - HIREAL
FEEMESRFTENBERT RARBELETLK
BUTIE R ZE5.0% DR ARSHREMREBEEK
BEBREEYASENEZE2015F KX2014%F 12 A31
Eti&%ﬁmmﬂ FEBT(RRAETRET
FHERMRE RIRSEEY - AANHIE - BEMETTE
ME N EZEE) ¢

2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Increase/(decrease) on profit before tax BB B FE0 (F L)
If RMB weakens against US$ and Euro PN ST ST ST P (2,592) (835)
If RMB strengthens against US$ and Euro i N\ R 50,35 50 K RROTTHE 2,592 835
Credit risk EERR
Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and time ~ ANEBE BRI DI S RIS SE WAL T EERFM
deposits are held in major reputable financial institutions located in  AFREAM AL RIFEENT B RIEE - EREN
Mainland China, which management believes are of high credit quality. EZZ4REEBEEESERLEE - AEEHEMESRE
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise bills — ZE(BiEEIEE - (U kI8 K fE U B 5 208)

receivable, other receivables and amounts due from related parties, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group has no other financial
assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy customers with
no requirement for collateral. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
should make full prepayment either in cash or bank accepted bills
receivable. Hence, there is no significant credit risk with the Group’s
customers. The senior management of the Company keeps reviewing
and assessing the creditworthiness of the Group’s existing customers on
an ongoing basis. As the Group's exposure to credit risk spreads over a
diversified portfolio of customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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Subsequent Events H%s1R
(a) Share Option Scheme (a) BPpRREETE
The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted pursuant to ARNBRIERER2016F2 A1 HBBARESR
a resolution passed by the Shareholders on 1 February 2016, and B IR BT S0 2016F3H10R ([ £
became effective on 10 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”). mEE)EM -
1. Purpose 1. A&
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an BRESTEEERREMARR R HE
incentive or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for EfIF B A FIER BRI AN 1EE B RLAY
their contribution or potential contribution to the Company AER2EE(BENT)IRMHIEEI D -

and/or any of its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible participants 2. EEERHEE

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the =G B NN 3 PR AR T B O IR |
provisions of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, MARBA] 2R ESBRERTART
at its discretion grant options to any full-time or part-time ENEB AR RAE B ERENTAERE
employees, including executives, senior management or R BSRBES (BETRAE -5
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent WEBABRDNBE (BIERITESE - IF
non-executive directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any PITESNMELIERTESE))  NEST
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest, and to any 2HMBERABERAAEBEERTESGE
company wholly owned by one or more persons belonging to HERME I — R H Ft R AL (45
any of the above classes of participants who, in the absolute W EEKSEALT D 2EHANETMAA
discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Al e

Group (collectively “Eligible Participants”).

3. Life of the Share Option Scheme 3. BRRESEIEIR
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a BB AERT 8 E20164F2 A1 BT T FHIRE
period of ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no B 2BAgE—SEDERE -

further option will be granted.

4. Total number of Shares available for issue 4. AHZFERHEE
The maximum number of Shares which may be issued AT ee T RIEBRETE TR 23
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share fREmEEITHRMOEHE AR TEBA
Option Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, 160,000,000/ 110 - (AR TR AFERA
representing 9.91% of the issued share capital of the Company HIE 81T N89.91% ©

as at the date of this annual report.

5. Maximum entitlement of each participant 5  E2EEAZEZRERDEE
Unless approved by Shareholders the total number of Shares BRIECRR AL - REER T BHMER
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to REAHBRNETERREASER TS
any participant (including exercised and outstanding options) SHEEREEEETERERITEZ
under the Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period up BENAE ) METT ST 2 R a8 - 75
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the total Shares in A B2 BT TRR D AR B2 1% ©
issue.
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Offer period and amount payable for options

An offer of the grant shall remain open for acceptance by
the eligible participant for a period of not more than 15 days
from the date on which it is made. A nominal consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme shall be one year after the date on which the option
is granted. The Board may in its absolute discretion impose
further restrictions on the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Share must be taken up

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose
restrictions on the exercise of the option, any option may
be exercised one year after the date on which the options is
granted and shall expire on the earlier of the last day of (i) a six-
year period from the date of such grant and (ii) the expiration
of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for
Shares upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall
be a price determined by the Board but in any event shall be at
least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets on the date on which the option is
granted;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
HKSE's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of that option;
and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

No Share Options were granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme as of the date of this report.
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(b) Completion of Listing
On 10 March 2016, the Shares have been listed on the Main Board
of the HKSE.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
Reporting Period.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 130 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group was RMB9.3
million as compared to RMB6.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The Group’s employee remuneration policy is determined by taking into
account factors such as remuneration in respect of the local market, the
overall remuneration standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and employee performance. The Group conducts
performance appraisals once every year for its employees, the results of
which are applied in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments.
The Group's employees are considered for annual bonuses according
to certain performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance
contributions are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance
with the relevant PRC regulations.

The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to
its employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain
their competitiveness and improve customer service. The Group did not
experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.
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Director and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (E##), aged 49, founder of our Group, has been
the Chairman and executive Director of our Group since April 2011. He is
also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is mainly responsible
for overall strategic planning and operation management. Mr. Huang has
served as the executive director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals since
April 2011, mainly responsible for the strategic planning and operation
management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Huang was the director
and chairman of Vast Surplus since November 2004 up until now, mainly
responsible for strategic planning and operation of Vast Surplus. After Vast
Surplus transferred its exclusive distribution rights to service Taurolite, TAD
and Esafosfina to Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding Limited in March
2015, it has no other business operations. Since then, Mr. Huang has
been devoting a majority of his time to our Group'’s business. In addition,
Mr. Huang was also a founder, chief executive officer and director of
Chengdu Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”)
since February 2004 up until now, when Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
was established. The principal business of Ruixin was consultation in
the pharmaceuticals industry, which included testing and sampling new
pharmaceutical products, providing marketing and promotion services
as well as assisting in obtaining regulatory approvals and registrations
for pharmaceutical products. However, the pharmaceutical products
serviced by Ruixin were mainly traditional Chinese medicine extracts,
which are different from those of the pharmaceutical products serviced
by the Group. Ruixin was not engaged in any business which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business. Furthermore, Ruixin was jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui (an independent third party who is not
considered a connected person or associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was
never a member of the Group which was readily disposable for corporate
reorganisation solely based on Mr. Huang's decision. Eventually, as the
management of Ruixin began to focus on the business development of
the Group since Mr. Huang incorporated Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals in
2011, Ruixin did not have any business or operations, which subsequently
led to the passing of the shareholders’ resolutions on 22 September 2015
to voluntarily dissolve Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan
(FEITm s Fr) from July 1988 to July 2004 as pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety

information.
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Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (“Beijing Guangtong”) (b @A B
IS E R AR AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao respectively. Both
Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr. Huang
confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business license of
Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation of Beijing
Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s business.
To the best of Mr. Huang's knowledge, Beijing Guangtong had ceased
attending annual inspection (%##) as Beijing Guangtong had no business
operation, resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on
26 November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act
on his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (E/&3238 K2 in December 2008 and graduated from the
MBA programme of Renmin University (FFE A R AZ2) in August 2002.
He also obtained a bachelor's degree in botanical resources (27 4 18 ¥ & R)
from Jilin Agriculture University (S # 22 KE) in July 1988. Mr. Huang
has been studying in the Université Paris — Dauphine under the Executive
Doctorate in Business Administration (EDBA) program since December
2013.

Ms. Zhang Zhijie (58 &#t), aged 47, joined our Group in November
2013 and is an executive Director and vice president for technics of our
Company, mainly responsible for new pharmaceuticals research and
development. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhang successively served as
a postdoctoral fellow of the research center, an associate chief physician
(starting from July 2013) and a research fellow (starting from December
2014) of the pharmacognosy study center of the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences from July 2008 up until now, and was responsible
for the coordination and management of the daily researches of the
pharmaceutical research centre and was also involved in the process of
setting up the pharmaceuticals research centre. Although Ms. Zhang is
concurrently working at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, she is
heavily involved in the Group's research and development programme. Ms.
Zhang is leading the Group's Sinco | programme as a research fellow for
the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences.
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The Directors are of the view that Ms. Zhang has been and will continue
to be able to allocate sufficient time to fulfill her duties and responsibilities
as an executive Director based on the following reasons: (i) as Ms. Zhang
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s new pharmaceuticals research
and development, her position as a researcher at the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences, in particular her involvement in the development of
Sinco |, is directly related to her role as an executive Director. By working as
a researcher at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, Ms. Zhang is, at
the same time, also fulfilling her responsibilities as an executive Director;
(i) to enable Ms. Zhang to allocate sufficient time to carry out her duties
as an executive Director, the Group has assigned four personnel to
assist Ms. Zhang with the development of Sinco | with respect to clinical
trials, patent applications and manufacturing processes, including two
researchers each with over 13 years of experience in the production and
quality control of pharmaceuticals, a researcher with a master’s degree
in clinical pharmacology specialising in the design and implementation
of pharmaceutical testing and a researcher with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration focusing on pharmaceutical laws who is in charge
of drafting reports and registration-related matters; and (iii) Ms. Zhang has
been diligently attending the Board meetings held by the Company since
she was appointed as an executive Director. In the event that Ms. Zhang
is unable to attend a Board meeting in person, according to the Articles
of Association, she is able to participate in such Board meeting by way of
telephone conference.

Ms. Zhang served as the general manager of Zhaoye Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd CKEAMEIHZABR A F]), a subsidiary of Nanjing Xiaoying
Pharmaceuticals Group Co., Ltd (B 5/ N&sE £ B H R A 7)), from July
2006 to October 2008, mainly responsible for new drug research and
development. She has also engaged in national research projects, which
involved contributing to the testing of mineral medicine and its quality
control. Ms. Zhang was the co-editor of two books and published several
research papers in national and international academic journals. Ms.
Zhang has also been awarded Second Prize for Science and Technology by
the China Association of Chinese Medicine in November 2005. Ms. Zhang
obtained her Ph.D degree in June 2006 from Nanjing University of Chinese
Medicine (Fg AR B8 %K 22). Ms. Zhang worked as a pharmacist in Henan
Provincial Pingdingshan City Chinese Medicine Hospital (jilg& I8
FREEBT) from September 1990 to August 2003. She obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine from Henan University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (A B9 £ £2f5) in July 1990.
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Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Chow Siu Lui ($8/N&), aged 54, was appointed as an independent  £8/NE %4 © 545% - BETAB I IERTES - A
non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016. 201652 B 1HARAER

Mr. Chow currently holds or once held directorship in the following 8844 B Bsk 2 4CA T oI E B B BT _E TR A &1

companies listed on the HKSE: FE=% .
Name of listed company HKSE stock code Position held Period
EHARER ERBTARORS Bifu HAR
Universal Medical Financial & Technical HKSE: 2666 Independent June 2015 — Present
Advisory Services Company Limited EBBZFT 2666 non-executive 2015 F6 RE=%5
IRTRE D B MR T A S RS director
BRAT B IEITES
Fullshare Holdings Limited HKSE: 607 Independent December 2013 — Present
BRIERBR AR BB AT © 607 non-executive 201312 B&S
director
BYENITES
Kong Shum Union Property HKSE: 8181 Independent February 2015 —
Management (Holding) Limited ABEAZPT 1 8181 non-executive October 2015
BREAMEEE(ER)BR AR director 2015 %2 A%2015 410 A
BYFNITES
NWS Holdings Limited HKSE: 659 Independent March 2012 — June 2012
FElEEEAR AR EBBAFT 659 non-executive 2012 F3 AZE2012 F6 A
director
B EHTESR
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Mr. Chow has extensive experience in fund raising and initial public
offering activities in Hong Kong, as well as accounting and financial
related areas. From April 2012 to present, he works as the managing
director of the private equity team in VMS Investment Group (HK) Ltd.,
where he is responsible for providing advice on issues regarding fund
raising, pre-IPO group restructuring and due diligence exercises for
investment projects. Prior to that, Mr. Chow was with KPMG Hong Kong
for about 28 years until December 2011 and was admitted as one of its
partners in 1995. He was then mainly responsible for IPO advisory services
and assisted fund raising activities in local and overseas stock exchanges.

Mr. Chow is the chairman of the audit committee of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS"”) and also the chairman of
the Mainland Development Strategies Advisory Panel of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Mr. Chow obtained a professional diploma in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (formally known as Hong Kong Polytechnic),
in November 1983. By profession, he is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, HKICS and the HKICPA.

Mr. Wang Qing (JX#8), aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016, mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. Mr.
Wang Qing worked at Dalian University of Technology (K3#3%2 T KE£2)
from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang Qing served as an associate
professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology and was
later promoted to professor in November 2010 and he was responsible
for research and development and teaching. From July 1986 to September
1997, Mr. Wang Qing worked as a pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning
Provincial Medical Company Limited (%% 251 R & (2 7)), where
he was responsible for drugs inspection and evaluation and participated in
research and technical renovation.

Mr. Wang Qing obtained his Ph.D. in treatment therapy system at
Kyushu Institute of Technology (JLJN % KX2) in Japan in March 2003
and a master’s degree in treatment therapy system at Kyushu Institute
of Technology in March 2000. Mr. Wang Qing obtained his bachelor’s
degree in medicinal plants at Jilin Agricultural University (5 #8222 K £2) in
July 1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (2|33), aged 77, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016, mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to the
Board. Prior to joining our Group, from February 2011 to present, he
serves as an independent director of China Biologic Products, Inc. (Z=F4E
MBS EFR A F]), a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From
2007 to 2011, Mr. Liu Wengfang worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan
Yuanda Shuyang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (P9)|3& K B5EERH AR
7~ a]) where he was responsible for research and promoting new theories
and applications in the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as
the chief engineer and director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. (¥
BAEY IR B R A A]) where he was responsible for supervising
the manufacturing process and quality management. From May 1998
to May 1999, he served as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng Bio
Manufacture Company (S[521& 4 W& R AR S £ 7)) where he was
responsible for research and developing new products. From 1978 to
1998, he worked in the Institute of Blood Transfusion, Chinese Academy
of Medical Sciences (A Bl & 27} 27 &) M 70 F7) and was engaged
in the segregation and purification of blood and protein and research,
development and quality analysis of blood products.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in biochemistry from the
Shenyang Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences
(FR B R 2P % 05 i B AR BB R 9E ) (formally known as the Institute of
Forestry and Soil Sciences) in August 1963.

We have entered into service agreements with each of our executive
Directors and have issued letters of appointment to each of our
independent non-executive Directors. The term of each of the service
agreements and letters of appointment with our Directors is three years.
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Senior Management

Mr. Li Zhizheng (ZE4E), aged 42, joined our Group in July 2011
and was appointed as a Senior Vice President responsible for strategic
planning and investment management of the Company in June 2015. Mr.
Li served as a deputy general manager of Great Holdings Limited (Bl¥5Z=
R AR A T)) from November 2010 to June 2011, and was responsible
for the operations management of the company. From September 2005
to October 2010, he held various positions in Dong Shang International
Holdings Limited (B4 BB A R A A]), including manager of the
finance department, assistant to the chairman and general manager of
the company’s subsidiary, mainly responsible for finance management,
investment management and operation management. Mr. Li served as
the manager of the audit department of Beijing Zhong Tian Yong Xin
Certified Public Accountants (1t AP Kk E &€ 5HRTE=5FT) from May 2003
to August 2005, responsible for audit management. He also served as the
audit manager of Beijing Jiaxin Da Sheng Certified Public Accountants (1
R ZEREETAIESAT) from February 2000 to April 2003, responsible
for project audit management. He was qualified as a Chinese Certified
Public Accountant in December 2000, and obtained an EMBA degree
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (_F/832 38K 2) in December 2009.

Mr. Li Yifan (Z—1{), aged 36, joined our Group in February 2015
and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and investment and financing
management of the Group. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Before joining the Company,
Mr. Li worked at China Polymetallic Mining Limited, a company listed
on the HKSE (stock code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and
last served as the deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial
accounting and management. From February 2005 to February 2011,
he successively served as an auditor of the Shenzhen branch and senior
auditor of the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. Mr. Li
obtained a master of science degree in Finance from University of Stirling
in January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University of Finance
and Economics (FERBIAERER) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree in
management. He has been a Chinese Certified Public Accountant since
January 2012.
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Mr. Liu Guowei (2B ), aged 39, joined our Group in December
2014 and was appointed as the Vice President for Operations of the
Company in June 2015, mainly responsible for the overall operations of
the Group. Mr. Liu has 16 years of experience in operations and human
resources management. Prior to joining the Group, from January 2009 to
September 2014, he was the managing director and principal consultant
of Beijing Talenbridge International Management Consulting Service
Co., Ltd. tRABELE B ERAMREBR AT, responsible for
daily operations management. From August 2007 to December 2008,
Mr. Liu served as human resources director of Beijing Longfor Property
Company Limited (1t R & 2 AR A &), mainly responsible for human
resources management of the group. From July 2005 to July 2007, Mr.
Liu served as vice president of Stronghold Holding Group Co., Ltd. (B.&l
EEiE =B AR A A]), mainly responsible for operations and human
resources management. From January 2004 to July 2005, Mr. Liu served
as human resources manager of Aramark Service Industries (China) Co.,
Ltd., responsible for human resources management. From June 1999 to
January 2004, Mr. Liu worked as the supervisor of the global employee
service centre team and leadership and talent supply team under the
human resources department of Motorola (China) Electronics Limited,
responsible for daily human resources management and key sales
personnel recruitment. In June 2012, Mr. Liu obtained an EMBA degree
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (_E/83238AKE2). In July 1999, Mr. Liu
graduated from Qufu Normal University (#h & Af&5AE) with a bachelor’s
degree in English education.

Ms. Wu Yue (R3H), aged 36, joined our Group in December 2014 and
was appointed as the Director of Sales of our Company in June 2015,
mainly responsible for sales and marketing of the Group. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. Wu served as a business manager of southwest region
and northwest region of Baxter Healthcare Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(AERERRE S (L8)BRAF]) from October 2014 to December
2014, responsible for business management. She served as a regional
business manager of Jin Bao Shen Nursing Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(EEEEER(LE8)BR2AAR]) from June 2013 to September 2014,
mainly responsible for business management. Ms. Wu served as a senior
regional business manager of Becton Dickinson Medical Devices (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (B EREEM( L/E)BR2AF]) from November 2008 to June
2013. Ms. Wu worked at Pfizer Investment Co., Ltd. where she served
as regional manager of commercial and retail business department from
September 2004 to October 2008. Ms. Wu received a bachelor’'s degree
in accounting from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (7§
B4R AKE2) in June 2004.
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Director and Senior Management (Continued)

ESNEREEE (&)

Mr. Peng Fei (827), aged 42, joined our Group in April 2011 and was
appointed as the Financial Controller of our Company in June 2015,
mainly responsible for overall finance management. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Peng served as the finance manager of Ruixin from September
2004 to March 2011, responsible for finance management. Mr. Peng
Fei also served as the finance staff of the Third Construction Section of
the Factory Construction Engineering Bureau, the Ministry of Railway
and China Railway Construction Engineering Group North Project Co.,
Ltd (B8R IERE=TEER PHEISEILFTIEARA
a]) from September 1991 to August 2004, mainly responsible for the
company’s finance management. Mr. Peng received a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (7§
B4 KE8) in December 2006. Mr. Peng also obtained the qualification
of Registered Tax Agent issued by Sichuan Provincial Human Resources
Department (P9)1|1%& AZEEE) in April 2009, and obtained the licence as a
senior accountant from Chengdu Reform Leading Group of Professional
Title in April 2013.

Mr. Hu Haibin (#35&), aged 43, joined our Group in April 2011 and
was appointed as the Deputy Director of Sales of the Company in June
2015, mainly responsible for marketing management of the Group. Mr.
Hu Haibin has over 10 years of experience in sales management. Before
joining the Group, from June 2004 to March 2011, Mr. Hu served as sales
manager of Ruixin and was mainly responsible for its sales management.
From August 1995 to May 2004, Mr. Hu served as project manager of
Sichuan Yuan Zhou Information Technology Company Limited (79)1[3&= M
= ERE%BBRE A F), responsible for project management. Mr. Hu Haibin
received an associate degree in economic information and computer
application from Sichuan Economic Management Cadre Institute (P9)11%&
OEEIEHEBERT) in July 1995.
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Ms. Bai Ling (A%), aged 36, was appointed as the Assistant to the
Chief Executive Officer in June 2015. She has over 10 years of experience
in corporate management. Ms. Bai joined the Group in April 2011 and
is mainly responsible for the internal management of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals. She served as the manager of administration and
personnel department, human resources department as well as the sales
and management department of the Group. Before joining the Group,
from September 2003 to March 2011, Ms. Bai served as the manager of
the administration and personnel department of Ruixin, and was mainly
responsible for its administration and personnel management. Ms. Bai
received a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Chengdu University of
Technology (5% #85E TA22) in June 2004.

Mr. Li Xianghong (Z#%), aged 31, was appointed as the Deputy
Director of Sales of the Company in June 2015 and has over 7 years
of experience in sales and marketing management. Mr. Li joined the
Group in April 2011 and was mainly responsible for the marketing and
promotion of the Human Albumin Solution and three newly imported
products (Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina) of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals.
Before joining Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, from July 2009 to March
2011, Mr. Li served as the sales manager of Ruixin, mainly responsible for
products sales. From May 2007 to May 2009, Mr. Li served as regional
manager of Jiangsu Chinese Pharmaceutical Technology Development
Corporation (T #f#& 88 2ERL 1 35 R 422 7)) and was mainly responsible
for its management of sales in southwest region of the PRC. From
April 2006 to April 2007, Mr. Li served as the sales representative of
Changzhou Fangyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (/N7 E®ZEHR A )
and was mainly responsible for its management of regional sales. Mr. Li
graduated from Chengdu University of Technology and received degree in
numerical control machining technology in June 2006.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Ko Wing Yu (558%4F), aged 48, was appointed as the joint company
secretary of the Company since April 2015 and has over 10 years of
experience of management in the pharmaceuticals industry.

Before joining the Group, from January 2013 to April 2015, Ms. Ko served
as the general manager of Vast Surplus, and was mainly responsible for
its daily operation. From August 2011 to January 2013, Ms. Ko worked
at Industrial Securities (HK) Financial Holdings Limited (S15% (&%) & &t
ZHEEBR /A ®]) as an administrative manager. From October 2002 to
August 2011, Ms. Ko served as the deputy general manager of Vital
Group Holdings Limited (4B EBZK AR 2 7)) (currently known as
CGN Mining Company Limited whose shares are listed on the HKSE
(Stock Code: 1164)). From January 2001 to September 2002, Ms. Ko was
not under any employment. From November 1994 to December 2000,
Ms. Ko served as the general manager of Yinli Foreign Investors Golf
Club Company Limited ($RF|5MNg S BEIKELILER A F), and was
mainly responsible for building the golf course and its daily management
and planning. Ms. Ko Wing Yu graduated from Coventry University and
received a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy in November 2012.

Ms. Wong Sau Ping (E353) is a joint company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Wong is a senior manager of the Listing Services
Department of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a fellow subsidiary of KCS Hong
Kong Limited). She has over 14 years of experience in the company
secretarial field. Ms. Wong had worked for one of the four largest
international audit firms, where she served large and well-known
companies listed on the HKSE. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor degree in
business administration and a master degree in professional accounting
and information system. She is an associate member of the HKICS and
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administration in the United
Kingdom.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Global Offering

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 March
2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”). The
Company's Shares were listed on the HKSE on 10 March 2016.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015
is set out in the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the year is provided
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 13 and
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 7. A discussion on the Group's
future business development is provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the Financial Highlights on page 4 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 71 of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Directors do not recommend a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 27
May 2016 to Tuesday, 31 May 2016, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Tuesday, 31 May 2016. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 26 May 2016.

Financial Summary

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last four
financial years are set out on Page 4 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Use of Net Proceeds from Listing

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the HKSE on the Listing Date
with net proceeds received by the Company from the global offering
in the amount of approximately HK$264.9 million after deducting
underwriting commissions and all related expenses. The net proceeds
received from the global offering will be used in the manner consistent
with that mentioned in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

Since the Listing of the Company and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the proceeds from the listing were not applied for any use.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's products purchased
from the largest supplier, accounted for 63.7% (2014: 56.7%) of total
products purchased, and products purchased from five largest suppliers
accounted for 100% (2014: 100%) of our total products purchased.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's sales to largest
customer accounted for 21.1% (2014: 21.1%) of our revenue, and sales
to the five largest customers accounted for 60.0% (2014: 59.1%) of our
total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2015
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out on Page 74 in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Associations,
amounted to approximately RMB159.3 million (as at 31 December 2014:
RMB89.8 million).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2015 are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chow Siu Lui

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Xiangbin, Ms. Zhang Zhijie, Mr. Chow Siu Lui, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr.
Liu Wenfang will retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected/elected at the forthcoming AGM
are set out in the circular to the Shareholders.

Board of Directors and Senior Management
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 32 to 42 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of Appointments
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company on 2 June 2015 for a term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than one month’s
notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment on 1 February 2016 for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by

the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

2=
HZE2015F12A3BLFEREEAREBHZE

HITES
B S (L RTTEARR)
ML

BYFITES
F@EE

TH L

£ &b e

IRIFABERRMAE16.2(5 - FEWEL - REBK
+ - B ERE R RE LB AR ERER
RBFAE LRE - BAEBRIMEEREERQF]
=

HREERFAFAE LEE EENERFBHRR
T TR B

EXENREREERE
AEBEERASRERE 2 BEFERNAFRER
Z42F -

BAUFHTESZBUMRRE

AAREEEEBIUIFNITESRIELTRAF3.13
FEHZBIMERE  ARRARR  RFEFHAR
R FHARRIE3 132 BILAL -

EERBEARETER
BYITEEC 201556 A28 EARQ AR AR #
o FHIA EWAERAS=F  ATRER—AR
B—HELT VR —EAEEBA T AL -

B IEITEEREN2016F2 A1 AT REK - 71
FERE £ B A= -

BERESITUAEE NN —FRARNEBECEER
BRRSN AR L2 RIS A #) ©

Annual Report 2015



Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director had a material interest in, either directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had an aggregate of 130 full-time
employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals
With Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors
Up to the date of this report, there were no changes to information which
are required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As the Company was not listed on the HKSE as at 31 December 2015,
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and section 352 of the SFO were
not applicable to the Directors or chief executive of the Company as at 31
December 2015.

As at the Listing Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

(i) Interest in Shares or Underlying Shares of the
Company
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Shares or  percentage of

underlying shareholding

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares interest
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Mr. Huang Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 65.625%
|mELE NEPEE R R
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(ii) Interest in associated corporation

(i) MEEEEREDS

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERHEE - SO RERMEE

Approximate

Amount of  percentage of

registered shareholding

Name of Director Name of associated corporation share capital interest

[EE:di IRAEREA

EEng HEEE AR RAEEHE Bat

Zhang Zhijie Sinco Biotechnology RMB300,000 30%
SREH ERIER AR AR#300,0007T

Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model
Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time from the Listing Date
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As the Company was not listed on the HKSE as at 31 December 2015,
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and section 336 of the SFO were
not applicable to the Company as at 31 December 2015.
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As at the Listing Date, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Interest in the Company

RETBEH - REZMRA - RBARRIZRBRESR R
BRI FEIBCIHRTFENECMAMRE - W TALT
(ARBEFLEBZTHABRIN R HARRERD
hHEERBE T R B GPIEXVERSE2 %373 #R R
ARANRRIPTREORRIORE

()  RERA e

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interest

RERL

8 By EEME RGEHAR B

Risun(® Beneficial owner 1,050,000,000 65.625%

EmEB A

Mr. Huang Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 65.625%
=iAE REEEE R

Note: Mzt -

M Risun is owned as to 100% by Mr. Huang, who is therefore deemed to @ RisunBiFmIEERERER o FUL - WAERIER
be interested in 65.625% of the issued share capital of our Company BRisunFTFRFAR RIE B1THAR65.625% H)#Eas ©
held by Risun.

Save as disclosed above, and as at the Listing Date, the Directors were — Br EXHEEIN - R ETMBH - EFHTIMBERA

not aware of any persons (who were not directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

As the Shares were not listed on the HKSE as of 31 December 2015,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements. Save as the bank loans
guaranteed by Mr. Huang as disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statement, the related party transactions were all terminated when
the Company become listed on the Main Board of HKSE. Pursuant
to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee provided by Mr.
Huang as disclosed in note 22 is connected transaction exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above connected
transaction.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Companies Law where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Non-Competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, our Controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of
non-competition in favour of our Company (for itself and on behalf of all
members of the Group), pursuant to which they have undertaken, subject
to and except as mentioned in the Prospectus, that they, would not, and
would procure that none of their associates (other than any member
of our Group) will directly or indirectly, engage in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with our Group’s
business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC or any other places in
which our Group carries on business.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

Save as disclosed in this report and the Prospectus, as at 31 December
2015, none of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged
in or had any interest in any business which competes or may compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Compliance with laws and Regulations and
Environmental Policies

During the Reporting Period, the Group kept in compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Group, including
environmental related laws and regulations. Please refer to “Environmental
Protection Policies — Compliance with laws and regulations” in the section
of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Relationships with Stakeholders

During the Reporting Period, coping with the external and internal
uncertainties and changes, the Group gained valuable experience, which
will help the Group to face and overcome challenges of the future. The
Group's sustainable development depends on the supports and efforts
of all the parties involved, including the employees, the customers, the
suppliers, the business partners and the Shareholders, and in particular
the efforts and contributions and dedication of all staff of the Group.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the
section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.

Director’s Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, at no time during the Reporting Period
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.

Charitable Donations
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group made no charitable
and other donations.

Subsequent Events
The material subsequent events are disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding
the provision of advance by the Company to an entity.

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s
financial reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and
internal control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the
Board and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group
audit.

The annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 of the Company
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’

Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. As the Company’s Shares
were not listed on the HKSE as of 31 December 2015, related rules under
the Listing Rules concerning the Model Code that Directors shall observe
do not apply to the Company for the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 54 to 68 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.

Auditor
Ernst & Young has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the CG Code since the Listing Date. The
key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
outlined later in this report.

The Company’s Shares were listed on the HKSE with effect from the
Listing Date. As the Company was not a listed company during the year
ended 31 December 2015, the CG Code was not applicable to it during
that period, but has been applicable to the Company since the Listing
Date.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and the Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee (the “Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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PEERRE (E)

Board Composition
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chow Siu Lui

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has been in compliance with the requirements under rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to ensure
that the Company will, when determining the composition of the Board,
consider Board diversity in terms of, among other things, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Board diversity policy sets out the approach towards achieving
diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the Board diversity policy, all Board
appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/

her independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.
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Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.

All directors have received training regarding listing rules compliance

offered by the Company’s legal advisors before the listing of the
Company.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

BRAFRIEERERERE |- SHRENEEER
Hh BEEEREMAMESITI2ERABREM
BABER(RRBMB - 215 KkAEMEAKRAR
BAR)

FEER(BEBIFNTES) O REESERERE
TRNBEEXHLR  HAELEX  FESMREXK
BIF - BUFNTEFTEBMAEZZRES  HFMZ

Bg REZEGNANEIREEXERZEE -

BRMRE TR ERESFHRENEFELRAR
RARBEERML 2 BB M E R EMERFBRERSE
ZEMRBBETARANER - EECRBRFERA
RAPBEREZHBEEERNESE -

ABRIFEERER
BENRTESOREHRVBZ ABNERER - AR
RRERD TRARR 2 2EMEBEBRERIFAM
EB - ER - RBIERARENEE - ARFNA
EELHFEIBEE - AREM_ETRRIREM A
BOERMEEREZRMERNET ZRIHER
EFENEEHEREHEBABEAQRRRI - MR KATR
BHER  NWERESSEBNZEFETHRE -

ARRBBEFS2EFEFTRER - IBEREHRA
BLAREE c RRARZ ARIME T EH RIRMHEHE
EZAE  BREMBEZE@MBEINE -

EREFHNARF EWATE X AR BERER I
HAERE T EMRRAZEET -

Annual Report 2015



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE (E)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals. Under the organization structure of the Company, Mr. Huang
was the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer. With Mr.
Huang's extensive experience in the pharmaceutical industry, the Board
considered that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person is beneficial to the business prospects and management
of the Group. The check and balance of power and authority is ensured by
the operation of the senior management and the Board, which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.
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Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, one Board
meeting and no general meetings were held and the attendance record of
each Director is set out in the table below:
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Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
the Board meeting(s) the general meeting(s)

BHiE BHE
Directors 2= AHEEEERAH A HERRAEIRE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin HmEW R E 171 N/A FEH
Ms. Zhang Zhijie REGEZ T 1”71 N/A RiEH
Mr. Chow Siu Lui q;EEE 1/1 N/A REA
Mr. Wang Qing SRS 1/1 N/A @A
Mr. Liu Wenfang £GPt 11 N/A T~EA
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. As the Company’s Shares
were not listed on the HKSE as of 31 December 2015, related rules under
the Listing Rules concerning the Model Code that Directors shall observe
do not apply to the Company for the Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to
seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.

Corporate Governance Function and Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee

The Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three members, namely Mr. Chow Siu Lui (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang
and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are independent non-executive Directors.
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The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee
which includes, without limitation:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

(f)  to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee are available on the websites of the HKSE and the
Company.

No meeting of the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee
was held during the year ended 31 December 2015 as the Company was
listed on the Main Board of the HKSE in March 2016. From the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report, one Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee was held and all members of the
Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee attended the
meeting in person.
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Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Chow Siu
Lui (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the
following:

1. to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Auditor;

2. to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

No meeting was held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
December 2015 as the Company was listed on the Main Board of HKSE
in March 2016. From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, one Audit Committee Meeting was held. Pursuant to the meeting
of the Audit Committee held in March 2016, all the members of the Audit
Committee attended the meeting in person and the following matters
have been discussed and considered:

o reviewed final results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the

financial year as well as the audit report prepared by the Auditor
relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit;
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o reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function), risk
management systems and processes and the re-appointment of the
Auditor; the Board had not deviated from any recommendation
given by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the Auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wang Qing (chairman),
Mr. Liu Wenfang and one executive Director namely Ms. Zhang Zhijie.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not
limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. to review and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board,;

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

No meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year
ended 31 December 2015 as the Company was listed on the Main Board
of the HKSE in March 2016. From the Listing Date and up to the date of
this annual report, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held, all
the members of the Remuneration Committee attended the meeting in
person.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Chow Siu Lui.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection

of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
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4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer; and

5. toreview the Board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

No meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year
ended 31 December 2015 as the Company was listed on the Main Board
of the HKSE in March 2016. From the Listing Date and up to the date of
this annual report, one Nomination Committee meeting was held and
all the members of the Nomination Committee attended the meeting in
person.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 38 to 41
of this annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
below:
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group'’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 69 to 70 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate internal control system to safeguard Shareholder
investments and Company assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal

control system of the Group and considered the internal control system to
be effective and adequate.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB1.3
million. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect of non-
audit services.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ko Wing Yu (“Ms. Ko"), one of our joint company secretaries of the
Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, as well as
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
also engages Ms. Wong Sau Ping (“Ms. Wong"), senior manager of
TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as
another joint company secretary to assist Ms. Ko to discharge her duties
as company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Ms. Ko, one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company.

Ms. Ko and Ms. Wong will undertake not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC. (email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.cn).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and with effect from the Listing Date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B A2 EM RS

o
EYex

To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 71 to 135, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as of 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B AR S (&)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

relEmkEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2015  #ZE2015%12 A31HILFE

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
s AR¥TT ARETTT
REVENUE g 4 1,096,071 950,079
Cost of sales SHEMKAR (943,564) (820,309)
Gross profit EF 152,507 129,770
Other income and gains E AU R i 7 5 827 2,295
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RACHAS (5,709) (6,792)
Administrative expenses THHAZ (40,524) (17,520)
Other expenses HibFZ (13,358) (7,715)
Finance costs BT R N 6 (7,105) (6,226)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR T 7 86,638 93,812
Income tax expense FriSHi 2 9 (17,197) (13,683)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREMR
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2HER AR 69,441 80,129
Attributable to: AR AT B -
Owners of the parent BREHEB A 69,614 69,367
Non-controlling interests SRR A (173) 10,762
69,441 80,129
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary AT EBRFFE A
equity holders of the Company: EaERET :
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —EARESE(ARKET) 10 0.058 0.058

2015 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

an\ (= ji&ﬂﬁ;ﬂl%‘%

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
bz AR¥T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 11 96,922 100,094
Intangible assets EEE 12 40,378 -
Payments in advance B FIE 13 69,427 48,028
Goodwill [ 14 35,526 -
Deposit e 15 3,000 5,000
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 245,253 153,122
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories e 16 46,563 100,676
Bills receivable JEWNZEE 17 77,186 36,916
Prepayments, deposits and BRI - HE Rk
other receivables H A e Gk IE 15 35,008 30,224
Due from a related party U — 2 B 7 708 18 - 50,060
Pledged bank balances BRIRIRTTAE B 19 22,068 11,936
Cash and cash equivalents B NBESZEY 19 38,138 58,280
Total current assets REEEHAE 218,963 288,092
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENBE
Trade payables B S e IR 20 62,793 18,637
Advances from customers BE#® 33,707 128,450
Other payables Hih I8 21 83,338 73,047
Interest-bearing bank loans sTRIRITER 22 81,915 91,788
Due to a related party e — R RAE S A 18 - 227
Tax payable FEfI R 8,909 5,580
Total current liabilities RENEEEE 270,662 317,729
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEFE (51,699) (29,637)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARSE 193,554 123,485
Net assets EEFE 193,554 123,485

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e BRI R (E)

31 December 2015 20154128318

2015 2014
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
s ARET T AREETTT
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners BRAREFA
of the parent bR
Issued capital B TR 23 95 -
Reserves i 24 193,333 105,214
193,428 105,214
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 126 18,271
Total equity A 193,554 123,485

Huang Xiangbin
EEW

Director

EF

2015 3R

Zhang Zhijie
RELE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Il‘/_.]—\ *ﬂh} o %E,% @J %

Year ended 31 December 2015  EZE2015%12A31HILFE

¥

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAEE
Retained
earnings/  Changes
Share (accumu- in non- Non-
Issued  premium Contributed  Statutory lated  controlling controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve losses) interests Total interests equity
B&T ) B4 i REEF/ FERE FER 4

B BEE 3 #E  (RiFR) #EE Foh i L

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARBTR ARKTT AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note 23)  (note 24(a))  (note 24(b))  (note 24(c))
(Wi23)  (Wzo4a) (WE4b)  (Wi24c)

At 1 January 2014 R2014E1 718 - - 4,250 4,327 32,228 4 40,847 7,509 48,356
Profit and total comprehensive income  EREFIR

for the year EElL N xS - - - - 69,367 - 69,367 10,762 80,129
Transfer from retained earnings BEREBH - - - 6,763 (6,763) - - = =
Dividend declared by asubsidiary to the ~ FiB A AIAERARE

then shareholders ERLIRE = = = = (5,000) = (5,000) = (5,000)
At 31 December 2014 and #2014512A310 &

1 January 2015 20151818 - -* 4,250* 11,090* 89,832* 42* 105,214 18,271 123,485
Profit and total comprehensive income  ERSHFIR

for the year 2ERAESE - - - - 69,614 - 69,614 (173) 69,441
Transfer from retained earings EEREEA - - - 196 (196) - - - -
Issue of shares Biikin 95 14,533 - - - - 14,628 - 14,628
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  WiEEFEE R

(note 27) (Wit27) - - - - - 3,972 3972 (17,972)  (14,000)
At 31 December 2015 0155124318 95 1453 4250* 1186+ 159050+ 4014* 193428 126 19355

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * RZEHEBREEFATBKARTOGEBBARE
RMB 193,333,000 (2014: RMB105,214,000) in the consolidated statement of 193,333,00070 (20144 : AR¥105,214,0007T) ©
financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ }EEUWE%

Year ended 31 December 2015  #ZE2015%12 A31HILFE

2015 2014
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
b AR®T T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EZEHMEBRLKE
Profit before tax bl 86,638 93,812
Adjustments for: FRUTEIE :
Depreciation e 7 5,185 1,878
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 7 5,045 -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss REIRE H E1E 4,109 3,145
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and HE#% - BE &
equipment ®BIER 2 E1E 7 - 6
Finance costs BTSN 6 7,105 6,226
Bank interest income RITH B A 5 (390) (1,402)
107,692 103,665
Increase in bills receivable U= IR AN (40,270) (27,984)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits FENFIE - ek
and other receivables H eI A, (3 0n) (2,784) 29,572
Decrease in inventories FERL 54,113 48,409
Increase in amounts due from related parties JE U A 8 7 R IEHE N - (38,658)
Increase in trade payables B 5 P SRIEE N 44,156 11,091
Increase/(decrease) in other payables E At FE A FRIEIE R (8,490) 26,754
Decrease in advances from customers BERZR D (94,743) (85,699)
Cash generated from operations SIEMEIRS 59,674 67,150
Interest received XA E 390 1,402
Tax paid [ERE2E! (13,868) (15,415)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBMEReREFHE 46,196 53,137
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&EEEFIBRSHE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE BMEX
equipment B E 28(a) (10,245) (33,447)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEIEE 28(b) (20)
Increase in payments in advance TR FRIEIE AN (21,399) (8,220)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R BT 8 2 ) 25 (8,000) =
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of a A& R AR R EE — R B A )
subsidiary from then shareholders HY FEFE LA 27 (14,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE BENK
plant and equipment BB B TS 5KR - 39
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEBMARSREFE (53,664) (41,628)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
%/—T‘AEEEIMLE%% (n\ )

Year ended 31 December 2015 EZE2015412A31HIEFE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZFEHFMERLKE
Dividend paid EAIARE - (5,000)
Interest paid BEAFE (7,105) (6,703)
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERFTE A 258,882 414,695
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER (273,793) (377,518)
Advance from a related party RAiE AR 25,633 =
Payment to a related party M @& 5k (6,685) (11,173)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEBATS,
financing activities (FPR)BE&REFRE (3,068) 14,301
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND HERBREZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS i“jm/ (R2)F8 (10,536) 25,810
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ERESET LT 526 (49)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E%ﬂfﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ% 70,216 44,455
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERBEN
END OF YEAR REeZEY 60,206 70,216
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReERREE
CASH EQUIVALENTS BRI
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the WIEARRTRFTTIRE K
statement of financial position REEEBY 38,138 58,280
Time deposits with original maturity of less than FRE|EAH BB =1EA
three months when acquired, pledged as R{EEEITE AEEIRN
security for issuance of letters of credit FHFER 22,068 11,936
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the ium%i‘%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁi&
statement of cash flows B 60,206 70,216

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R ERAR MR

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 16 March 2015. The registered office address
of the Company is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Unit 4408A, 44/F, Cosco Tower, 183
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in marketing,
promotion and channel management services for improved
human plasma-based pharmaceutical, antibiotics and other
pharmaceuticals focused on therapeutic areas complementary to
human plasma-based products and other fast-growing categories in
Mainland China. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation in preparation for the Listing, which
was completed on 28 May 2015, the Company became the holding
company of subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation were set out in the Prospectus. The Company’s
shares have been listed on the Main Board of the HKSE since 10
March 2016.

In the opinion of the Directors, Risun, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

2015 3R
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RAFARR2015F3 16 B EFASHSEMA
SREREERARF c AR AWM EEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. AEAIREEER @)
Information about subsidiaries B RER

RRAREMEARFENAT

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date of

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable to the
Name place of business share capital Company Principal activities
TR, 2R BRITLE/ NG
% AEEEY T RA BEEAL TEEK
Direct Indirect
BE ik
% %
Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
("Starwell") BVI 50,000% 7 RERR
BxsEERAERAR(ESR]) 20135118268
EBBRARKES
Hong Kong Prosperous 20 December 2013 HK$100 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
AL Hong Kong 100/ 7T HEZR
20135124208
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals® 1 April 2011 RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
PO )| R A B0 Mainland China AR ¥5,000,0007 HEEm
20114718
Bl A
Sinco Biotechnology® 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 70 Research and development on
ERER A YR Mainland China AR®1,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
20135114258 BORE
FEl A
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB2,000,000 - 100 Providing warehouse facilities for
Technology Co., Ltd.® Mainland China ARH2,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
REENREERMARARD 2014524268 REERRERIE
HE A
Chengdu Hengsheng® 4 March 2015 RMB100,000 - 100 Consultation on medical and
p&slE Mainland China ARH100,0007T biological technology
20153 84H BRI A
B3,
Linzhi Ziguang(® & 17 November 2014 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
R K R Mainland China AR#10,000,0007 HEER
201411178
B,

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mae

PARE R M T (48D

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.1

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise under the PRC law.

(ii)

These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC
law.

(i) As of 31 December 2015, 100% of the equity interests in Linzhi

Ziguang were pledged to secure the Group's other loans (note 22(b)).

During the year, the Group acquired Chengdu Hengsheng and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Linzhi Ziguang, from an
independent third party. Further details of this acquisition are
included in note 25 to the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS, which comprise standards and interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"),
and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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2015612 A318 » M2 ERED KT
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(iii)
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RIFRE25 ©

AR

MR IIZRBERM B REER(REDAL
MeBERetENEES((AREAEUNES
BDRUzEARRELREREHENRES
AR B HER ([ ERrE 2R ) AERIE
BZEgRB)UARBTERRGIZRERER
B o PBMKRTHRE LKA EOIGEE - BRABE
BRESN  MIEERAARB(TARKDZY M
FAEEBEANEEREITT °

HEE%E

GANERERBEARRREMNBAREE
2015612 A31 B ILFEMIEHRE o B A
EBANREESMEETHNER - EXAEEBER
2EIGEHRMNAREE MAE ] ZERFFHRER
HBEEZHAI RO - I AANEREIRE Y
SHE N (BREF R T AL EBE AR A E
B EWROERTEE) FEZEEHRE - BIE
1SR o

AMAEERRERAT

79



80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control for subsidiaries above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

2.1 REEEm)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investments retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

2.2

HREEXEE)

WEAEBAENBDORNEHE - BISBUY
BRO)ZHBRARNEE(RESE) REE (i)
IS R EE ¢ RS B RETE
HEE BHONGRER(FMERENDTE : ()
RBFENATE  RVENEBREENA
o ZAIEEE 2 ERAFTRERAEBSEHH
HE - @ENANASEEENEEEEESS
BFREAMNER  BEHHEDBARREHF
(BERmE) °

BHBEREEZ2H
R EBRAFE 2 AT IR B R T AR AT
X8 -

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: BIpR &R T2ER] EFEENFTE - 1B HHN
Employee Contributions F1958 (BETA)
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRS 2011 22013F % TA B B s S o ZE A
2011-2013 Cycle B2 ERHE BIERT
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRS 2010F 22012 %I B B s S 4R
2010-2012 Cycle PR FRHH BER]

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the
Listing Rules issued by HKSE relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The main impact to the
financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16 and
IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16 and
|AS 41

Amendments to IAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture$

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Leases*

Disclosure Initiative'

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements'
Amendments to a number of IFRS!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
5 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRS for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not

applicable to the Group

6 No mandatory effective date yet determined, but is available for

adoption
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRS that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9
will have an impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets. Further information about the impact will
be available nearer the implementation date of the standard.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRSs. In July 2015, the IASB issued
an amendment to IFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral of the
mandatory effective date of IFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing
the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS (Continued)

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 which requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. Under the new
standard, a lease is a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the
right to use an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset if, throughout the period of use, the customer has
the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
the use of the identified asset and direct the use of the identified
asset. Lessees are required to initially recognise a lease liability for
the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the identified asset for the lease term. Subsequently,
lessees accrete the lease liability to reflect interest and reduce the
liability to reflect lease payments made. The related right-of-use asset
is depreciated in accordance with the depreciation requirements
of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. For lessors, there is little
change to the existing accounting in IAS 17 Leases. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing
the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in respect
of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The
amendments clarify:

(i)  the materiality requirements in IAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(iii)  that the entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to the financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must
be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply
when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial
position and statement of profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2016. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS (Continued)

In January 2016, the IASB published Amendments to IAS 7. The
amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2017.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle in IAS 16
and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating business (of which the asset is
part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through
the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only
be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Going concern

As of 31 December 2015, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately RMB51,699,000 (2014:
RMB29,637,000). In view of the net current liabilities position, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of finance in
assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern.

Based on a detailed review of the working capital forecast of the
Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Group is able to meet
in full its financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable
future. To mitigate any liquidity issues that might be faced by the
Group, the Group may curtail or defer its expansion plans based on
the availability of sufficient funds.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
as current assets. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from the failure of the Group to
continue in business as a going concern.
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31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as of the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the (a) consideration transferred, (b) the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and (c) any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as of 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwiill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHEHEME (a)

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued) BAER (&)

or 54

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) #F&FHAREE NIEEGEEE

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEASEAR-—SEMNKEAR
group; 5

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —EAEEARS —EAERE(HZEEN
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of ISR/NETIR MT%"T&H%WEE?QET)
the other entity); )N A= NN

(iiiy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEBEASEAR-—F=7M&%
third party; NG|

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (ivy —RAERAF=FEENESZEANA]
entity is an associate of the third entity; Mes—EEERZE=HERENEE

AR]

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZEBRALAKEE:S) ERNE B A R
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity MEENEES A= ANBRZET
related to the Group; EE|

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ZEEERQEBARATHATIEG ST
identified in (a); Pl

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) @OEARATHALTHZERBEEAY
over the entity or is a member of the key management 2 R ATEZER(IZEEN
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and BRRMEZEEERAE : &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZERIZEEMBSEEMNERKE
part, provides key management personnel services to the RAIRAEE R AREBE R ARME
Group or to the parent of the Group. ZEIRANBRTS

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation E - BERRBRITE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, Y - R MR (ERTRERIN) IR AR R
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment T E RERDREEB AR - Y% - Jﬁ&}%&?“{%
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment TBEMRABIEREEREEEZIRTERE
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs YEARBE K 10 B A (] B2 FERT R AN o

of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.
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31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold land and buildings 34-60 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as

follows:
Exclusive distribution rights 9 years
Software 5 years

Operating leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a
lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating lease are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in “Other income
and gains” in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in “Finance costs” for loans and in “Other
expenses” for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or decreased by adjusting the allowance amount.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to “Other
expenses” in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
interest-bearing bank loans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings is as follows:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Housing fund
Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Following the
implementation of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.

3. Significant Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements require
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

2015 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

3. Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued) 3. BEEEFEE®

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) fAET T RERE(#)

(@) Impairment of goodwill (a) EERE
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least AEEGEFELET—ABESERE -
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value MEGEFEIREENRSELENTE
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is FAEE - HIFEREEEAEREHREE
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to EBAMTBERRRESMEFEITEET - 1
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the FREEENTRE - UFE LARESR
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount =RE - ®2015F 128310 - HEEK®R
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. B A AR¥35526,0007C (20144 : 7@
The carrying amount of goodwill as of 31 December 2015 was ) o FIEER I EIRKMT14 -

RMB35,526,000 (2014: Not applicable). Further details are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.

(b) Impairment of receivables (b) JEUFIERE

Impairment of receivables is estimated based on an assessment JRE 50 TR TR R (B R W R T ) AT U B 1
of the recoverability of receivables. The assessment of AR FERRFERES ZF A
impairment of receivables involves the use of estimates and fhat R HET o & A] fEUR 0] 38 22 1 2 23X
judgements. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when B - FARA MBEEHFENEERE
collection of the full amount under the invoice is no longer B AEREREITET - MEREERRD
probable, as supported by objective evidence using available S o B B 128 B FR 45 R ol 78 B B R 2R il
contemporary and historical information to evaluate the AR ZEEEBRAEBETESMNE
exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Where the My ErERZIENEEERRESRS
actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from B o FBLEGLE W GRIBRT IR B R E
the original estimates, such differences will affect the carrying (20144 : £E) -

value of receivables and thus the impairment loss in the period
in which such estimate is changed. There was no impairment
provision for receivables during the year (2014: Nil).

(c)  PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT") () HEIEZEATZH([PELEAERH )

The Group’s operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are 7R 52 B 7E AP B A 4 A 2 A B B 8 R B AR AR
subject to PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters R EEFTSR o BB T A5 E
relating to PRC CIT have not been confirmed by the relevant MAEREBETRCEMSHNE TS
local tax authorities, objective estimates based on currently B ANETHRECEMSHREBEERER
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are BIRATROE  ER R EMEEBCRIEE R
required in determining the provision for PRC CIT to be made. BT o Wiz S EHN KRB ER Y
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from RRCRE AR ZEBRBTEMSHRA
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact X REFEEEHRNRIBERE - 720155
the income tax expense and tax provision in the period in 12A318 - BNFRECEMERAKE
which the differences realise. The carrying amounts of PRC B A ARS,909,0007T(20144F : AR
CIT payable as of 31 December 2015 was RMB8,909,000 5,580,0007T) °

(2014: RMBS5,580,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e UBRERME(E)

31 December 2015 20154128318

3. Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

@

(e

W)

2015 3R

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated,
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The useful
lives of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 2.4
to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be
incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of a similar nature. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. The
carrying amount of inventories as of 31 December 2015 was
RMB46,563,000 (2014: RMB100,676,000).

Research expenses

Research expenses are expensed in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note
2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
expensed requires management to make judgements on the
research and development progress. Research costs charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted
to RMB3,028,000 (2014: RMB1,725,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

Revenue and Operating Segment Information
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net of
various types of government surcharges.

The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are
mainly derived from its sales of Human Albumin Solution, antibiotics
and other pharmaceutical products focused on therapeutic areas
complementary to human plasma-based products and other fast-
growing categories in Mainland China, which is regarded as a single
reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior management
for purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. In
addition, the principal non-current assets employed by the Group
are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is
presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

Entity-wide disclosures

Information about products

The following table sets forth the total revenue from external
customers by product and the percentage of total revenue by
product during the year:

WK &&E s TER
WD & BB Z R E (T &2 BTN
nER) o

AEES G RAFENERMEIEREEA
MAZRESR AR EARMNFHREH
B LAt B 28 A e A B P b LA KR 1) BRI £ A
BmmHER  RASHIAE A HRESE
EAREENSAAEESREREREER TR
—BU AEETERDBRREFNE o 1o K
SEEANTEIFRBDEEDLNTE AL o
It RABBASEMEEI  RAEZD WM
A o

DEEAEMNE

EmEH

IR FRIREmME D KB INBE P RS
MEBERFEAKREBRDLL -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T % ARETT %
Sales of goods: HEEY
Human Albumin Solution A A% 5K 668,007 60.9 628,575 66.2
Antibiotics A=
(Axetine and Medocef) (LA R R ESE ) 316,312 28.9 307,073 323
Others EAh
(Taurolite, TAD, Esafosfina and CBRE Z=E . BE
Xinneng Qo) 18 Kt BEQuo) 111,752 10.2 14,431 1.5
1,096,071 100.0 950,079 100.0

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4. WHBEL o BER (&)

(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued) LERAENMHKE(E)

Geographical information Hh 2 B

All external revenue of the Group during each of the two years AEBREZ2015F K2014F12 A31 B IERE
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was attributable to customers fE & FEWFTE INR IS R B AL B A (A
located in Mainland China, the place of domicile of the Group’s EELETESML)NES - NEBMAEIER
operating entities. The Group’s non-current assets are all located in FEEI BN o

Mainland China.

Information about major customers BESEH
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to REZSEEZFRE(IHBUREERI10% KA
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: B)E»T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Customer A ZHEA 231,140 200,640
Customer B =B 180,310 181,201
Customer C BFEC * -
Customer D 25D * 101,740
Customer E =PE * *
S Less than 10% * LH10%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

5. Other Income and Gains 5. Htl AR
BRAEMBA KK T

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

106

2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T AREETTT

Bank interest income RITHBHA 390 1,402
Government grants* BB * 415 870
Others Hih 22 23
827 2,295

* Government grants have been received from Chengdu Hi-tech District
Science and Technology Bureau, primarily for the Group’s research and
development of a Chinese medical drug for the treatment of leukemia.
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the

government grants.

6. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

*  AKREEREBERHRMXBESEIEZANHER
1R B MR T ENBURHE) - WEABZE
BT BN R BT IR s A=A -

SRS AR
AMIHRANAITIT :

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETFT

Interest on bank loans IRITEFF S 5,688 5,995
Interest on discounted bills receivable FEUAEIR EIRF 8 1,417 231
7,105 6,226

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

7. Profit Before Tax 7. BRBADZRF
The Group's profit before tax was arrived at after charging: AEEARRIADEF TSR IA T SIBREH ¢
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AREETTT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 943,564 820,309
Employee benefit expense (including Directors’ & & @5 (B1EHI 318
remuneration as set out in note 8): FREtEE =5 B) -
Wages and salaries TERF® 7,403 4,647
Welfare and other benefits B A R H 5 516 579
Pension scheme contributions RINEFEIHR
— Defined contribution fund —ERERES 974 707
Housing fund: FEAES
— Defined contribution fund —ERERES 439 266
Total employee benefit expense EERMFAx A 9,332 6,199
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
s AR¥TT ARETTT
Depreciation of items of property, plantand Y% - BE MEFEITE
equipment 11 5,185 1,878
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 12 5,045 -
Research expenses HER = 3,028 1,725
Operating lease rentals KEBAMEE 1,048 748
Foreign exchanges losses, net M 3 s 1E 5 11,167 5,647
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant  HEWE « BRE R#EE
and machinery & - 6
Auditors’ remuneration 22 M3 B 1,345 75
* The amortisation of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December S BZE2015F 12 A3V HILFENEFLEEEEA
2015 of RMBS5,044,000 (note 12) is included in “Cost of sales” in profit R ¥5,044,0007T (HE3312) st AB 2500 SR
or loss. )] o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees
Directors' and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

EERFETHAEFMEEEES
ES

BIEEMRR - FEQAMEHIZE383(1)a) * (b)
OERMERARI(BREESMEER) ROIE25D
WENFRNESREBITHRABHMET ¢

as follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFTT
Fees e - -
Other emoluments: Hipe -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He R REWEF 188 -
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIHR
— Defined contribution fund —EREERES 46 =
234 =
(a) Independent non-executive Directors (a) BAFHITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors during
the year were as follows:

FABMNBILIFNTEENRENT ¢

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKET T

Mr. Chow Siu Lui* BN
Mr. Liu Wenfang* ) it
Mr. Wang Qing* D=t

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive Directors during the year.

* Mr. Chow Siu Lui, Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing were
appointed as the Company’s independent non-executive Directors
on 21 September 2015, which is effective from 1 February 2016.

1 08 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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* PNEELE  BIXFREREBEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e UBRERME(E)

31 December 2015 20154128318

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
(b) Executive Directors and the chief executive

2015 3R

8. EERFETHAEFMRERERS
HES (®)
(b) BITEERETEITHAE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e
BER Bihe
e BYEH BETA FHEIftR @gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREFTT ARETRT ARETRT AR®TRT ARETRT
2015 20155
Executive Directors: HTEE
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin® — B4 - 188 - 46 234
- Ms. Zhang Zhijie® —REGEL L0 - - - - -
- 188 - 46 234
2014 20145
Executive Directors: HITEE
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin® —EREW A - - - - -
- Ms. Zhang Zhijie® —REHEL L0 - - - - -

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

The Company did not have any chief executive, executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors until the date of incorporation on 16 March
2015.

(i) Mr. Huang Xiangbin was appointed as the Company’s executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer on 16 March 2015.

(i) Ms. Zhang Zhijie was appointed as the Company’s executive
Director on 2 June 2015.

FABBESEHELARBRETAFHHE
ZHk e

ARNBR MM B #2015 3 A 16 H Al
WEEREZITHAE ITTES « IEH
TEERBIIFRITES -

() EBEWERENR2015F3816HEZRT AR
ARIMITESFITERBE -

(i) REEELLTN2015F6 A2BEZTAEARR
AIAITES -

mpnsmzpssass 109
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included one
Director (2014: one Director), details of whose remuneration
are set out above. Details of the remuneration during the year
of the remaining four (2014: four) highest paid employees who
are not Directors as follows:

8. EERFETHRAEFMEARES

FEE ()

(0 EBEERSHES
FR IEBRRHEERE—RES
(2014F : —RESE) @ EFBFBEHRA L
X o EfRIUA (20145 : R ) BoFIEE
ERENFARNFBFBHOT

2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REWET 966 950
Pension scheme contributions RINE TSI 238 176
1,204 1,126

The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

EN T RIBEN RS FIEEEREN
ANEAT -

2015 2014

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/%8 7T

9. Income Tax
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profit tax rate is 16.5% of the Group’s assessable profit
derived from Hong Kong. The Group had such profit during the year
ended 31 December 2015 and therefore provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made accordingly.

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective PRC CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of Mainland China for the year. Except for certain
subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) that are
entitled to a preferential income tax rate, the PRC subsidiaries are
subject to the PRC CIT rate of 25% during the two years ended 31
December 2015.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

Fr S %t
REFS RS B R BRBBNRR AR -
FEEHASPRSRERABEBREBNE
fAFTEHE =

AEERE BB ERRAEBIREBHER
E16.5% 5 - NEEREE2015F12 8311
IEFESRGHBTE - ABAREEFEHTR
B -

RIS EFST B E LIREZERT ER GRS
FRS 88 B KR AR BT EE 2 20 51138 FR A PR B8 gt
BRI B EFTSTBIERIR - BRRP BT
MeETFHBAR(FRMNBAR])EEZEE
BTSRRI - EHZE2015F12A318 IER1E
FE - FEMEARBRTFECEAMEHRBE
25% 57 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

Income Tax (Continued)

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

9. FiEHiw=wm)

FERMXME ARSI MT

2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AREETTT

Current tax: BNEATIE
Income tax in Mainland for the year A A TS 5L 11,021 13,683
Income tax in Hong Kong for the year BERFNESH 6,176 =
Charge for the year FRNEH 17,197 13,683

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the applicable tax rate for companies within the Group to the tax

expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

BAEEET AREAREAEERRREA
M THIRR S EIRE IR R A B BRI S #Y
HERT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREETTT

Profit before tax FRA5 Al Ve A 86,638 93,812
Tax at the respective statutory tax rate BEBAEBEFERNIE

— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — R BB A EIR25% A E 15,908 23,453

— Hong Kong subsidiary at 16.5% —BHBMBARIRI6.5% & 3,796 =

Lower tax rate for certain subsidiaries (note (a)) ETHBRRNBRIE R

(Hfit(a)) (6,668) (9,374)

Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 3,637 202

Income not subject to tax BARBIA - (598)

Tax losses not recognised AN IEEE 524 -

17,197 13,683

2015 3R

AMAEERRERAT

1M1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

9. Income Tax (Continued)
Notes:

(@)  Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical changed its legal status as a foreign
investment enterprise upon the issuance of new business license on 13
October 2014 and therefore a new application is required in respect
of the 15% preferential tax rate for the year ended 31 December
2014. The Directors considered it was more likely than not for Sichuan
Sinco Pharmaceutical to obtain the approval for the preferential tax
rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2014. On 22 May 2015,
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical obtained the approval from the tax
bureau of Chengdu Hi-tech District, pursuant to which Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceutical is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% according to
the “Western Development Policy” as it is engaged in the encouraged
industries for the foreign investment enterprise listed in the catalogue
of the encouraged industries for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015.

From year 2015 to year 2017, the income tax rate of the Tibet
Autonomous Region will change from 15% to 9%. Accordingly, Linzhi
Ziguang is entitled to the 9% preferential tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2015.

(b)  Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement has been effective from 1 January 2008 and applied
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The withholding tax rate for the
Group is 10%.

As of 31 December 2015, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiary
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that this subsidiary will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group's operation and the expansion of the Group’s operation in
Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences as
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB160,176,000 (2014: RMB103,721,000).

10. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Company
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,200,000,000
(2014: 1,200,000,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share for

the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 as no diluting events
occurred during the current and the prior years.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

9. FiEHiw=wm)

it -

(a)

(b)

PO )| R R B 2014510 A 13 B R & 2
RS E A EMN AINERE - AULAER
FEEE2014F12A31B EFE15% N EER
Ko BERE W) EBRIREERIEIERE
BE204FN2ANALEFEZEEEHEIS% °
72015658228 © M) BRI R BEXIESKR S
HEBRE DA - AR M| BRI A HERE S
2014 K 2015%12 B31 B It R EERIERE
TTEBSFIRIINEDESBEREITE - R
BIPEEARFREER |Z B 15%NEEHE -

2015F F2017FHAR © AR B RaRAATSFHE
KGR 15%EE A9% - AL - #ZE2015F124
BNBILFE  MEERABERZEIREBRFX o

BRI RS HAR A ROER - hR R B AR A7
RISNE R ERINRIZE E SRR EEK10%
MTEINF - sZEE B 2008F1 A 1BEAR - I
FAM2007F12 A31BENARF o iHh B R
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10% °

2015128318 » WERAERR P ERH
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FERECEHBEAE E2RA  ERBREK
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AR BB 2 B A RIE R E R SR E 2
BEH ANR%160,176,0007C (20144 : AR
103,721,0007T) ERELEFRIEE & ©

10. ARABAEBEREAABESREF

HE2015F K2014F12 A3 B ILEENETR
EARRBA - RERARBERIIEE AREF
EmF - RERNBEITE B INE TS E
1,200,000,0000% (20144 : 1,200,000,0004%) &t

H o
It

AREFERBEFETENREES - Bt
HZE2015%F K&2014F12 A31 B IEFENERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

11. Property, Plant and Equipment 1. % BERKE
Leasehold Construction
land and Office Motor  in progress
buildings  equipment vehicles ("CIP") Total
HELTHE WAZE EEIR
BF B AR ((EEIR) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETFT AR¥BTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBT:x
31 December 2015 20156128310
Cost: R
At 1 January 2015 20151818 91,417 3,409 8,312 - 103,138
Additions NE - 254 1,693 - 1,947
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B A )

(note 25) (Hfzt25) - 66 - - 66
At 31 December 2015 FA2015612 8318 91,417 3,729 10,005 - 105,151
Accumulated depreciation: ~ BEHiTE
At 1 January 2015 720151 /81H 931 582 1,531 - 3,044
Provided for the year FREHE 2,302 730 2,153 - 5,185
At 31 December 2015 72015512 A31H 3,233 1,312 3,684 - 8,229
Net carrying amount: BRIERE
At 1 January 2015 20151 H18 90,486 2,827 6,781 - 100,094
At 31 December 2015 720155128318 88,184 2,417 6,321 - 96,922
31 December 2014 2014128318
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 R2014F181H 8,400 876 2,350 48,419 60,045
Additions INE 11,335 2,533 6,042 23,263 43,173
Transferred from CIP ERAERITR 71,682 = = (71,682) =
Disposals HE - - (80) - (80)
At 31 December 2014 72014%12H318 91,417 3,409 8,312 - 103,138
Accumulated depreciation: e
At 1 January 2014 #2014%1 818 449 313 439 - 1,201
Provided for the year FANEAE 482 269 1,127 - 1,878
Disposals & - - (35) - (35)
At 31 December 2014 720145128318 931 582 1,531 - 3,044
Net carrying amount; SREFE
At 1 January 2014 720141818 7,951 563 1,911 48,419 58,844
At 31 December 2014 2014%128318 90,486 2,827 6,781 = 100,094

2015 F3§ R RSB R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

11. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(a) As of 31 December 2015, the Group's buildings with net
carrying amounts of approximately RMB11,027,000 (2014
RMB11,203,000), were erected on the land where the Group is
still in the process of applying for the land use rights certificate.
The Directors are of the view that the Group is entitled to
lawfully and validly occupy and use the above-mentioned land.
The Directors are also of the opinion that the aforesaid matter
will not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position as of 31 December 2015.

(b) As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s buildings with net
carrying amounts of RMB77,089,000 (2014: RMB79,283,000)
were pledged to a bank to secure the bank loans (note 22 (a)).

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s buildings with net
carrying amounts of RMB11,027,000 (2014: RMB11,203,000)
were pledged to Sichuan Development, an independent third
party, in order to obtain a guarantee provided by Sichuan
Development for the bank loans (note 22 (c)).

(¢) The Group’s land included in property, plant and equipment

is situated in Mainland China and held under medium lease
terms.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

11. Y% - BERRE @)

(@)

(b)

(c)

R2015%12 8318 » NEBERERFEYD
AR #11,027,000 7T (2014 F : AR
11,203,0007T) VEF RN A S B HF
AR LI EERALTEE
BEGEREBBEARER L+ - &
ENRE - L EEHAEER2015F12
A31BMEBHRR TS B EMEATE -

R2015F 128318 @ AEBEREFEEAE
AR #77,089,000 7T (20144 : AR
79,283,0007T) HEFEHEA T —HR1T -
ERIRITERMER(FIFE22@)) °

MR2015%5 128318 AEBEREFES
AR #11,027,0007T (2014 F : AR
11,203,00070) MIEFEHA 7M@) & 2
B BYFE=7)  LEBE)I|&ERTIR
TEFRENEREE22(0) °

SAME - BERRENARE AR
hEAM - P HBREORE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e UBRERME(E)

31 December 2015 20154128318

12. Intangible Assets

12. BREE

Exclusive
distribution
Software rights Total
Y BREHRE et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARKETIT AREEFIT
Cost at 1 January 2014, R2014F1 818 »
31 December 2014 and 2014123318 &
1 January 2015, 20151 A1 BIRACA
net of accumulated amortisation kR REHEEEH - - -
Additions NE 20 45,392* 45,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25)  UEEMIB AR (A17F25) 11 - 11
Amortisation provided during the year & #2585 (1) (5,044) (5,045)
At 31 December 2015 72015512 A31H 30 40,348 40,378
At 31 December 2015: 720156128318 :
Cost AN 31 45,392 45,423
Accumulated amortisation G T (1) (5,044) (5,045)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 30 40,348 40,378

It represented the purchased exclusive distribution rights by the Group
from Vast Surplus, a company controlled by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, in
respect of the respective distribution rights for Taurolite, TAD and
Esafosfina for nine years since 1 January 2015 in Mainland China, at a
cash consideration in aggregated of RMB45,392,000. These exclusive
distribution rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful
life of nine years.

13. Payments in Advance

& EAEBUREKES T AR 45,392,0007T
AR (HEFW T ARG AR)BEBERCH
- NREBRERR  FRELEEESERTEH
A E 201551 A1 BTN ERLHEE - 2%
B R A S AR R R IR N F Al A F

13. FEHFIE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT
In respect of: L TIE B B97E1T 50 -
Prepayment made in relation to construction L —GRAEER BN
of a warehouse TARTFRIA 69,427 48,028

AMAEERRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

14. Goodwill 14. BE
RMB’000
ARETFT
Cost at 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 20141818 ~ 2014F12A318 &

1 January 2015, net of accumulated impairment 20154F1 A1 BIRAAR - HIBR BEHRE =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25) WREF B A B (f75£25) 35,526
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2015 72015612 A31 B 2 A K EREFE 35,526
At 31 December 2015: 72015512 H31H -

Cost [B#N 35,526

Accumulated impairment RERE =
Net carrying amount BREFE 35,526

116

Goodwill is acquired through the business combination of Linzhi
Ziguang Group on 31 March 2015. Goodwill acquired through
business combinations is allocated to the pharmaceutical products
cash-generating units ("CGUs") which is the sole group of CGUs of
the Group.

Impairment testing of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections which
is based on financial forecast approved by the Company’s Directors
covering a period of five years. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 20.1%, which is determined by reference to the
average rates for similar industry and the business risk of the relevant
business units. Cash flows beyond the five-year period were assumed
to be stable.

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwvill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased
for expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external
information sources.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

A R E BN 201593 A31 B
AOHKEE - BIBEBAKENEEN DAL &
RREELBN((REELEN]) - AAREER
SEEBMME—AR -

2 Z R

ZA e ELEAARIN T E BT RAERA
RAIEFHENTFHRUBRAELNRERE
BRZREREEAEETE - ReRERAMKRA
BIREIRER20.1% » WK SERUITEN T
L& R BRES B EFRRIZETE - AFN
ERREREBRSIRE °

EEERETHERENSARHERRERR
FRB 2 SR BRI ¢

BHEENXR -REEEREEMNXEEERZ
AEENERBEEFE —FHMESHFHEER
xR IR ERERMIEN

BEIRE — PRI R RTHATLL X - RARB R SEAL
R E R o

BT EZRENVEERINTVERIRIRAEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e UBRERME(E)

31 December 2015 20154128318

15. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

15. ANRIE - RERAfEKRE

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE ARET T AREETTT
Current portion BN
Prepayments in respect of: LA IE B BYFET 00 -
— purchase of inventories —-BEEE 657 -
— technical service fee —RMRSEE 3,429 1,459
— deferred listing fee —IRE ERE () 3,697 =
— consultation service fee —BHAREE (b) 4,890 =
— others —HAh 551 1,102
Deposit in respect of: KU TIEA B1ZE
— purchase of inventories —-BEEER (© - 11,663
— others —HAt 1,158 985
Value-added tax recoverable AI YR EE(E R 20,463 14,616
Staff advances B I8N 163 399
35,008 30,224
Non-Current portion B
Deposit in respect of: KU TIEA y#%E -
- CIP —EEIIR (d) 3,000 5,000
38,008 35,224
Notes: Hist -
(a)  Deferred Listing fees represent legal and other professional fees relating (a)

(b)

()

(d)

to the Listing, which will be deducted from equity when the Company
completes the Listing.

The balance as of 31 December 2015 consisted of a prepayment of
RMB4,000,000 made to an independent third party, in relation to
lift Taurolite from the provincial Insurance Catalogue to the national
insurance catalogue by 31 December 2016. Pursuant to the service
agreement entered into between the Group and the independent third
party, such prepayment will be fully refunded if Taurolite is failed to be
registered in the national insurance catalogue by 31 December 2016.

The balances represent refundable deposits paid to Octapharma, an
independent third party, in respect of the purchase of Human Albumin
Solution, of which 25% of the original deposits would be repaid to the
Group every six months pursuant to the purchase contract entered into
between the Group and Octapharma.

The balances represent deposits paid to an independent third party in
respect of the first-stage construction of the Group’s warehouse. Based
on the completion progress of the first-stage construction, part of the
deposits was collected in April 2015.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

2015 3R

(b)

(d)

BELETRAXE EMABRERREMERE
A SRR R TR B IR o

2015 12 A31A 2 & BEH MK 2016512 A
31 ERFHCEARRRESF)BEAE(EE
RB BB LMABLE = FEMNTBARE
4,000,0007T ° RIEAEEEBLE=H LK
BRF 7% - HEIE 2016512 A31 B E & KRAE
WEERR B )BT BEENFEE2ER
=R ©

ERERBEANAZES RN TELE=S
R BTSN AR AR S - RIBA KB R o
BRIV HBEALY AN EARAKEIER
ERERE25%MEHE -

HERIERASERES —HRRAN T —2BILE
=HRES o  BIEFE—HERNTTH#ER 9
S BER201554 F 4@ -

it EEMEBIEIRNE - St A AR SR
BESIIMEER CERNEEREER -

AMAEERRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

N

A PSR AR ()

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

16

17.

. Inventories

At the end of the Reporting Period, all inventories represent finished
goods of pharmaceutical products.

Bills Receivable

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on full
payment in advance of delivery either in cash or in bills receivable
accepted by a bank. The Group maintains strict control over the
settlements of its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s bills receivable of
RMB19,800,000 (2014: Nil) were pledged to secure the bank loans
(note 22(b)).

As of 31 December 2015, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC, with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB201,301,000 (2014: RMB53,580,000) (the
“Derecognised Bills”). The Derecognised Bills have been accepted
by reputable banks in the PRC like China Construction Bank,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, China Merchants Bank,
Bank of Communications, Bank of China and Bank of Chengdu and
have a maturity within three months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated advances on
discounting and trade payables.

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their face
amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB1,417,000 (2014: RMB231,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement
and discounting has been made evenly throughout the year.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

16.

17.

rE
RIBEIR - FIAF RIS ERERER -

FEW R

AREEETFHNE SRR EBRBNINER
AIAIR S SIRTTA N B IRIR 2 BN - ANE
V] S L A LA [0 ) R MK R TR A B A AR
WHBEEZESIER AR ERAREERE -

R2015F 12 A31H » AEBERKEEREAREK
19,800,0007T (20144 : &) B WIS IRTT
ER(HI7E22(00)) °

2015612 A31 8 - ASERE TESE
MIRTTEAENERERE  ZEREREES
H A AR®201,301,0007C (20144 : AR
53,580,00070) ([ R IETERERE |) - RILERE
BEPEEERRT - PRETERT - BRI
RBIRTT © PBIRTT A EDIRI TS R B AN ERTT
5 RIREER  2EZENERSEE A=
A o IRE(PEARKEMBEZE L) » fHhBIAE
TER  RUIEBRZENSEAUEAEEHEGE
RE([SESE]) - EFRE - ~NSEEERR
REPHEK I EREERFENRR KBR -
It - BB FERR R EIR KA IR 2K
MBS RN FENZIREE -

AEERE R FERREOR S R E &
REBEXRERREEZER L ERRBENARMIRR
EREFNEMEE - BFAR  AREHR IR
REBNFEZ2EN DI FELTERK -

FR - AEBERERIREENFSATAR
#1,417,0007C (20144 « AR#231,0007T) (Bt
716) - WERF AR B ERFES BN S
HETE - BEE SRS E RINREREE T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

18. Balances with Related Parties 18. ERREE H HAEER
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR¥T T ARBTFT
Due from a related party: JEYT— 5 7 A -
Non-trade in nature FEZME
— Vast Surplus —5& ) - 50,060
- 50,060
Due to a related party: JET—EBZE 5 #F -
Non-trade in nature HFEHHE
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin —EFEWEE (b) - 227
- 227
Notes: Hist -

(@) Vast Surplus is a company controlled by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, one of
the Controlling Shareholders. The balance as of 31 December 2014
represents interest-free loans granted by Hong Kong Prosperous to
Vast Surplus, which has been fully settled during the year ended 31
December 2015.

(b)  The balance as of 31 December 2014 represented a Shareholder’s loan
granted by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, one of the Controlling Shareholders,
to Hong Kong Prosperous for its business development, which has been
fully settled by the issue and allotment of 10,000,000 new ordinary
shares on 28 May 2015.

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank 19.

(@ BERAEBRBRRERELEWTCEEFHOAR - B
2014512 A3 AW &SR EEEBERE TEAN
SERER DREZE2015F12 8318 IEFE#A

s=
/B °

(b) 2014512 A31 BRI IRIGR ZHEW L
ARTFEBER  AEEEEEROBRRER
B /R2015%5 H 28 H @A 51T &2 AL 210,000,000
&3 BARAE)S o

REeRRESFEYREEFRITER

Balances
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITEESH 60,206 70,216
60,206 70,216
Less: Pledged bank balances* W BERRITERR (22,068) (11,936)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 38,138 58,280
2015 &4 myzssnpasss 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R I RR M ()

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

b7 N =]

19.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank
Balances (Continued)

The Group’s cash and bank balances at the end of the reporting
period can be further analysed as follows:

RERRESEYRCSEMRRITEER
()

RIBEER - AEBNMRS RIBITABTE S
AT :

19.

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETIT

Denominated in RMB AARBEHE 32,683 67,646
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 27,062 2,570
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 113 =
Denominated in Euro LABRTTEHE 348 =
60,206 70,216

* The balances represent time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months pledged for issuance of letters of credit for the purchase
of the Group’s pharmaceutical products and to secure the Group’s
bank loans (note 22(b)).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for the period of three
months, and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks

* EHRERIHBATEB=EA  MRBEHE
AR B 7 5 (B 22 i [ BRAS AR SR SR 1T B AR (BT Rt
22(b)) i R0 FE HATFK

ARETREERARREMER - AW - Rig$
B A OMNE B IR R DI ) K HEE - EE RS EE
BRE)  AREERERERRIINERTH
RITHARE S RIEMER -

RITRSLRIEE B RITFFNEAE R ZE T
KR - EHFEROFREIA=[EA - WREE
BTERM R R o RITEBR K ERFFIFRT
B R 48k BB RIFAVIRTT

with no recent history of default.

20. Trade Payables

An aged analysis of trade payables as of the end of the Reporting

B ENRIEA
RIBEER - BN RRERN R R A MNERER

20.

Period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

DI

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETT

Within 3 months 3fEAA 62,793 18,637

AEENEZENFAL/TFERBENROR
N#EE

Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 90 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

21. Other Payables

21. HitERFIE

2015 2014
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
k=3 ARBTT ARETT
Payables related to: BHELATIER 2 ERI5RIE

Payroll and welfare payable e T & R AEF 1,485 498
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 28(a) 1,428 9,726
Deposits received Bz & (a 51,349 62,570
Acquisition of subsidiaries g i) N (b) 27,079 -
Consulting and professional fees BANREEER 1,300 =
Other payables HAb R FRIE 697 87
83,338 73,047

Notes: Hiat

(@  The balances represent refundable deposits received from the Group's
distributors according to the sales contracts in order to guarantee their
performance under the distribution agreement.

(b)  The balance represents the remaining consideration payable in respect

of the acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Linzhi Ziguang Group
from Beijing Ziguang, an independent third party.

All other payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and
unsecured.

22. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans

(a) RHEARENKERHANRKHEBHRMIRE
MREHEARNERIRE L AIRERE

(b) AEARBEWIRBTE =TRSO Z &
E100% 2 87 TIERRUE

REE A EARN ORISR 8 R EIER o

22. stEHEITER

2015 2014
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
s AR®T T AREETTT
Bank loans: IRITER -

Secured and guaranteed BEEEEER (a) 15,000 37,000
Secured BHEA (b) 46,915 =
Guaranteed BHER (© 20,000 54,788
81,915 91,788

Bank loans repayable: FEEBIRTTER
Within one year R—FR 81,915 91,788
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31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

22,

23.

Interest-Bearing Bank Loans (Continued)
Notes:

(@)  The balances as of 31 December 2015 represent one-year bank loans
granted by Chengdu Bank to the Group of RMB15,000,000 (2014:
RMB37,000,000), which bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 6.0%
to 7.5% per annum and are guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin and
secured by the Group'’s buildings (note 11).

(b)  The balances as of 31 December 2015 consist of (i) one-year bank loans
granted by Bank of Shanghai to the Group bearing interest at a fixed
rate of 5.22% per annum, which are pledged by 100% equity interests
in Linzhi Ziguang; and (ii) three-month bank loans of US$2,605,000
(equivalent to RMB16,915,000) granted by China Merchants Bank to
the Group, bearing interest at the rate of 0.8% above the 3-month
LIBOR with maturity in February 2016, which are jointly pledged by the
Group's bills receivable of RMB19,800,000 (note 17) and pledged by
time deposits of RMB500,000.

(c)  The balance as of 31 December 2015 represents a one-year bank loan
of RMB20,000,000 (2014: RMB20,000,000) granted by Bank of China
to the Group, which bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.88% per annum
with a maturity date on 29 October 2016 and is guaranteed by Sichuan
Development.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the above interest-
bearing bank loans approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Share Capital

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
March 2015, with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided
into 3,800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each. Upon
the incorporation, 59,950,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were issued and allotted for cash at par value of HK$0.0001 each
to Brightsome Sky Investments Limited, 1,039,050,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were issued and allotted for cash at par
value of HK$0.0001 each to Risun and 90,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company were issued and allotted for cash at par value of
HK$0.0001 each to Wisen.

On 28 May 2015, 1,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company were
issued and allotted at par value of HK$0.0001 each in exchange for
50,000 ordinary shares of Starwell from Mr. Huang Xiangbin and
Lumine Holdings Limited. Upon completion of such share exchange,
Starwell became the Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiary on 28 May
2015.

On 28 May 2015, 10,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
were issued to Risun, a company controlled by Mr. Huang Xiangbin,
at a consideration of RMB 14,534,000 for the purpose of settlement
of the shareholder’s loan granted by Mr. Huang Xiangbin to the
Group (note 24(a)).

As of 31 December 2015, 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares were in
issue at par value of HK$0.0001 each.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

22,

23.

STEBITER®E
Mgt -

(@) 2015512 A31 B RIEREIRITH T AE
B — FHIRTEFR AR 15,000,0007T(2014
& AR¥37,000,0007T) * EEFFENF
6.0%ZE7.5% ' AEEWEERER  UREEZ
F(FEE1) (KR o

(b) M2015F 12 A31BMEHEIE() LFRITHE
FTAEBN—FHETER  BEFHNERA
5.22% * LAME SRt 2 ERARAE(EIRHR ¢ ()RR
RITIR FALE M =@ A RITEF2,605,0003%
T(HEERARE16,915,0007T) » 1R=18AHH
RITRIZEIF B HN0.8% MF R 8 + R2016%F2
REE - DAAREBEEKER AR 19,800,0007T
(FF5E17) R & 8375 5k A R #500,0007T ££ B /B
?ﬁa °

(© H2015F12 A31BMEHRIERBERTHR FAE
B ) — FHIRITE R AR %20,000,0007T (2014
£ AR #20,000,0007) 0 BEFEEFNEA
5.88% - #2016510 A29B8 I8 - BI0)IIE
BRER -

EIREE - LHEFBRITERZ A FEERSE
ZEHERSE  T2EARKRERSEHTAMN
o

&N
ARAFR2015F3 16 BEH S RIS MK
VA TE f% 7N £380,000/8 7T * 43 4 3,800,000,000
fi% & JX E 18 0.0001 B T ) L@ A% - sEM A
% + 72 "]% Bl M Brightsome Sky Investments
Limited * Risun & Wisen 3 17 X fig % 59,950,000
% + 1,039,050,000 % % 90,000,000 % & J& &
0.0001 7T H) E AR AENIR € o

M 201565 8288 © AR AT K%
1,000,000 0% &A% EI{E0.0001 7 JT ) B AR A
HE MW %5 & K Lumine Holdings Limited F7# &
550,000/ @Mk - B RARGM T ]TAE - B
SR2015F5A28BX BARRINEENEA
EJ o

MR2015F 58288 ' ARAAUKREBARK
14,534,000 7T A Risun ( &= FEW L £ HIEY A &)
#£7710,000,00088 37 & 3@A% - ARG EFEW 5T
& MR E R AR E R (FEE24@)) °

#H & 2015 F 12 A 31 H N N A BT
1,200,000,000% & X FI{E0.000 1 T A L A% o
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31 December 2015 20154128318

24. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 74 of the financial
statements.

(@)

(b)

2015 3R

Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable as dividend
on the condition that the Company is able to pay its debts
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business at the
time the proposed dividend is to be paid.

As described in note 23 above, share premium account as of
31 December 2015 consisted of (i) 10,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company subscribed by Risun at a consideration
of RMB14,228,000 on 28 May 2015. The difference of
RMB14,227,000 between the balance due to Mr. Huang
Xiangbin and the nominal value of 10,000,000 new ordinary
shares issued to Risun was credited to the Company’s share
premium account; and (i) 1,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company were issued and allotted at par value in exchange for
50,000 ordinary shares of Starwell from Mr. Huang Xiangbin
and Lumine Holdings Limited on 28 May 2015. The difference
of RMB306,000 between the exchanged shares of Starwell
of RMB306,010 and the increase in the nominal value of
1,000,000 new ordinary shares issued was credited to the
Company'’s share premium account.

Contributed surplus

The contributed reserve represents the aggregate nominal
amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical
attributable to the owners of the Company.
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24. Reserves (Continued)
(c) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve (the
“SSR") until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical has been changed to a
foreign investment enterprise since 13 October 2014, allocation
to the statutory reserve fund (“SRF") is subject to the board
resolution according to Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical’s articles
of association.

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical further shifted its legal status as
a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise upon obtaining the new
business licence since 16 April 2015. According to the Rules for
the Implementation of Foreign-funded Enterprise Law of the
PRC and articles of association of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical,
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to the SRF until
such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.

25. Business Combination

On 31 March 2015, the Group acquired a 100% interest in
Linzhi Ziguang Group from Beijing Ziguang, an independent third
party. Linzhi Ziguang Group is primarily engaged in the sale of
pharmaceutical products. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group's strategy to expand its market share of pharmaceutical
products in Mainland China. The total purchase consideration for
the acquisition was RMB35,000,000, of which RMB8,000,000 was
paid during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the remaining
RMB27,000,000 will be paid at the earlier of (i) 10 days after the
Listing, or (i) within 6 months after the completion of inclusion of
“biological products” into the scope of business licence and good
supply practice certificate of Linzhi Ziguang.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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25. Business Combination (Continued) 25. ¥Rt
The Directors are of the view that through such acquisition, the EERAEAEE BB S A URBIRS 8¢
Group is entitled to certain tax benefits by operating through KEEBRMAAETRGER - B TR EER
Linzhi Ziguang. Aside from the tax benefit mentioned above, the ZON  WEEMGE S B IR A] LA — 2B KA
acquisition of Linzhi Ziguang Group is to further expand the Group's ENREERM - EAEEFIRAERBIEBERRER
customer base, generate synergies with the Group’s existing business & NE— SRR MEERITENGF ] - 78
and further enhance our competitiveness in the pharmaceutical BAPTHER M BN AR HUR AT B FL -

industry. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purpose.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Linzhi FUE B IS R S BRI BRI B E R A E8
Ziguang Group as of the date of acquisition were as follows: NEEAT -
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
Wi B
BN
AFE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Office equipment (note 11) MAEZME(HraET1) 66
Intangible asset (note 12) B ERE(f5t12) "
Other payables E b eI 5RI8 (603)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value AR FaEA T EER (526)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 14) W E R B (HaE14) 35,526
35,000
Satisfied by: AR A A+ -
Cash Re 8,000
Other payables HABRK 27,000
35,000
An analysis of the cash flow in respect of the acquisition of a W —HEATMIEBEES RESNNT ¢

subsidiary is as follows:

RMB’000

AREETTT

Cash consideration BeNRE 8,000
Cash and bank balances acquired FriSiR & RIRITAERR =
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEBYR L FE 8,000
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25.

26.

27.

28.

Business Combination (Continued)

Since the acquisition, Linzhi Ziguang Group contributed
RMB59,601,000 to the Group’s turnover and RMB3,254,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would have been RMB1,096,071,000 and
RMB69,441,000, respectively.

Dividends

At a meeting of the Directors held on 30 March 2016, the Directors
resolved not to recommend the payment of a final dividend to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Notes to the Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Equity

Acquisition of non-controlling interests represents the acquisition
of a 15% equity interests in Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical from
Kelun at a consideration of RMB8&,400,000 and a 10% equity
interests in Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceutical from Mr. Gui Guoping
at a consideration of RMB5,600,000. The difference between the
consideration paid to Kelun and Mr. Gui Guoping amounted to
RMB 14,000,000 in aggregate and the share of net assets acquired
of RMB17,972,000 is recognised in the reserve.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows

Major non-cash transactions

(@ During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
capitalised certain building construction costs in respect of the
office building, of which RMB1,428,000 (2014: RMB9,726,000)
was unpaid as of 31 December 2015.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the acquisition of
the exclusive distribution rights from Vast Surplus was settled
by the amount due from Vast Surplus of RMB45,392,000 (2014:

Not applicable).

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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29. Operating Lease Arrangements 29. KEHOTH
As lessee fERAEMBA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under an operating AEBREBKEHOTHHES THAYWE %
lease arrangement. These leases have a life of one year. At the end FHOMNBIRAE—F - RBREHKR  AEERE
of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease RIS E A 2 B B R R & (B € 425 40
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as T:
follows:
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Within one year R—FR 216 520
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FERF(REEREMT) 542 =
758 520
30. Commitments 30. HA&iE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the RIRERR - NREEWERAHENT ¢
reporting period:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: BETABEREE
— Construction of a warehouse —EREE 37,514 23,447

37,514 23,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

31. Related Party Transactions 31. BELFRS
(@) During the year, the Group had the following material () =R AEFEBEFNEARZOT
transactions with related parties:
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PitsE AR®TT ARBTFT
Purchases of goods FEEYm
Vast Surplus fs& (i) - 26,514
Bank loans guaranteed by FRE W R B R
Mr. Huang Xiangbin IRITEK (ii) 15,000 91,788
Purchases of exclusive distribution rights — f& B &5 A4S #5712
Vast Surplus sz (iii) 45,392 =
Notes: HiaE -
(i)  The Directors consider that purchases were undertaken based on () EBRE BEIREBEESHENELOET -
mutual agreed contracts.
(i) The bank loans were guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin for nil @iy SRITEFABEHWEEEERR(ZE223))
consideration (note 22(a)).
(i) The Directors consider that the amount paid by the Group to (i) EFRAAKEENBREOFATIRER T X
Vast Surplus was determined based on the market price similarly ARPRELUNELE=FHTERETE
to those paid to independent third parties in the ordinary course
of business.
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b) EERAEHWIARTEEER
Details of the Group’s balances with its related parties at the AR B s B R LR E 5 BV A RRRT IR 1E
end of the reporting period are disclosed in note 18 to the BRI AT 184858 - BARAE H AR A
financial statements. Balances with the related parties are BB MR R E T E R R o
interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.
() Compensation of key management personnel of (0 AEEFEEEASHRM
the Group
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBIREYREA 937 425
Pension scheme contributions RREFTEIfER 109 109
1,046 534

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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Mg mE ke EE B ERBR

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and bank
balances, pledged bank balances, bills receivable, other receivables
and amounts due from related parties, which arise directly from its
operations. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly include trade
and other payables, an amount due to a related party and interest-
bearing bank loans.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department which
is led by the Group’s executive Directors. The Group’s finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group's operating units. The main risks arising
from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that
adequate resources are available to manage the above risks and to
create value for its shareholders. The Directors regularly review these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group’s bank deposits and interest-bearing bank loans. The interest
rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank loans are
disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing loans through the use of floating rates
or a mix of floating and fixed rates. The Group also holds certain
borrowings at floating interest rate so as to manage part of the
fair value interest rate risk. In addition, the Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risk.

As of 31 December 2015, floating interest rate borrowings
accounted for about 21% (2014: 78%) of the Group’s borrowings,
and fixed interest rate borrowings accounted for about 79% (2014:
22%) of the Group’s borrowings. Management would adjust the
proportion of floating rate borrowings based on changes in the
market interest rates to reduce the significant impact of the interest
rate risk.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the market interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s consolidated pre-tax profit would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB819,000 (2014: RMB918,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2015, and there would be no impact
on other components of the consolidated equity, except for retained
earnings, of the Group. The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in market interest rates had
occurred at the end of the year and had applied the exposure to
interest rate risk to those financial instruments in existence at those
dates.
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

130

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s purchase of products from the overseas suppliers is
denominated in US$ and Euro. Most of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash
and cash equivalents, prepayments, deposits and bank loans that are
denominated in US$ and Euro.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change
in RMB against US$ and Euro. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analyses of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment of
translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$ and Euro,
respectively, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
(due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
prepayments, deposits and bank loans denominated in US$ and
Euro):

2. EREEEERBE®)

SNE LB

REE B BSMLE R R Em AT REUTE
B - AREABNEENABAARKEE @ H
AR EBITAHERN R & KRS EEY) - AR
B RERRITEREETEBRIN -

ARERE B ETSAEAIEPER S A B IR R INE
KE o EREEERAKREIINERR - XKHESR
FEREBETEAINERL

TRIIRARE H T R EUTIE =2 8)5.0% A
HRE - 5.0% INBEEBEIRA S ZHINE
BERBRATALE  ATEBYH AR REEREBHM
STl o ANER B3 HR I 2 A9 S NE R B BURK
EoH  iREEMEEMESRBTIENER
T ARBEETREUTERZE50%5 5
AESREPRECEERABEHLEERAEE
REZE20154 K% 2014512 A31 B ILFEBRTLA
BN EETE (BRAETEBUTHERNE S
RESEEY - BANFE - ZERBITEFHA
FEZBHH)

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT

Increase/(decrease) on profit before tax BB FIE I (5 )
If RMB weakens against US$ and Euro AR R ETEBICEE (2,592) (835)
If RMB strengthens against US$ and Euro fis) N R HE H 26 T BT A 2,592 835

Credit risk

Substantial amounts of the Group's cash and cash equivalents
and time deposits are held in major reputable financial institutions
located in Mainland China, which management believes are of high
credit quality. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise bills receivable, other receivables and amounts
due from related parties, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group has no other financial assets which carry
significant exposure to credit risk.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 32. BIBEAKBEEEERKE @)

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy customers
with no requirement for collateral. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers should make full prepayment either in cash or bank
accepted bills receivable. Hence, there is no significant credit
risk with the Group’s customers. The senior management of the
Company keeps reviewing and assessing the creditworthiness
of the Group’s existing customers on an ongoing basis. As the
Group's exposure to credit risk spreads over a diversified portfolio of
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank loans
and its own funding sources.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

EEREE)
AEEERERANBEEPETRS  TEK
HR - REAKENBRER - ETFPRAR SN
FEYERITAA RIBRERTAN - Aitt - AKERP
TEBAEERR - ARRBREEERFERS

MHEAREBREREPHIEE EEGHK%lE%?
MEERRERZTIEEFAS - FLWESE KR
SPEE-

SN - RERIR A MIRISEEERE - MAKE
ZERRRIAEK o

MENE T =M
AEEEBEELHERRSRAEHHMAN
BRI B S EEANRS ARSI RE,
B -

AEENBERERERF SRTERRERS
B2 RRERFESHEERER TN T -

DATﬁyﬂK’%l(ﬁ%ﬂiéfﬁﬁéiE%ﬂﬂﬂi REHIAREA
RN GOE P

2015

Less than 3to 12
On demand 3 months months Total
RERE LR=EA =Z+=MEA B
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Interest-bearing bank loans sHERITER - 17,773 67,153 84,926
Trade payables B S ERZIE - 62,793 - 62,793
Other payables o pEATROE 697 2,728 51,349 54,774
697 83,294 118,502 202,493
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 32. BIBEAKBEEEERKE @)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE &R (E)

2014
Less than 3to 12
On demand 3 months months Total
RERR LR=EA ==1+=f@A k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Interest-bearing bank loans AT EIRITER - 36,084 58,844 94,928
Trade payables B S ENFRIE - 18,637 - 18,637
Other payables HAbfER FRIE 253 9,726 62,570 72,549
Due to a related party e RAE T 2RIE 3,977 - = 3,977
4,230 64,447 121,414 190,091
Fair values ANEE

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and are
based on relevant market information and information about the

ANHEMEF RS ERFERBEBTISEN RS
BT EERMEL - ZEMFTBEBRME - BRA
HERENRERHEEIR - Fi T EREETE -
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement BEmEEF o e ES S Mt -

and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in

assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature

132

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash deposits and interest-
bearing bank loans approximated to their fair values based on the
prevailing borrowing rates available for deposits and loans with
similar terms and maturities during the reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial instruments
approximated to their fair values due to the short term to maturity at
the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or raise new capital from its investors.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing financial risk during the year.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations and new bank
borrowings. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Group'’s policy
is to keep the gearing ratio between 15% and 50% over the long
term. Net debt is defined as interest-bearing bank loans and an
amount due to a related party, net of cash and cash equivalents
and excludes liabilities incurred for working capital purposes. Equity
includes equity attributable to the owners of the Company and non-
controlling interests. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

32. IKEREEEEREBK @)

EAREE )
REEREEBEEMSARES KRITE
PREERFXRHRES - AEEMBEFEHE
(BEFEREREEBMBETE) EEER -
REENBRABEBHEXRPEREIS%E
50% 2 - BEFREE B RITERKRERE
BEHRERRAERREEEY  EABHERE
BECEANAE - BRBEARREE ARG
Rz M SRR RS - REHIR 2 BELL R0
T

2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETTT

Interest-bearing bank loans FTESRITER 81,915 91,788

Amount due to a related party FE T RAE 7 5E - 227

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERRESEEY (38,138) (58,280)

Net debt BB 43,777 33,735

Equity R 193,554 123,485

Equity and net debt ERkBaEFEeE 237,331 157,220

Gearing ratio BEL = 18.4% 21.5%
mysssnparss 133
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33. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  33. &2 T B Bt R &

Information about the statement of financial position of the BRAKRABRHEARNTEARTREROT ¢
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31 December

2015
2015%12H31H
RMB’000
AR®T T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FEM B R EMRE 306
CURRENT ASSET REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary el —FRIM B A EI5kIE 14,941
CURRENT LIABILITIES it b=
Other payables E th e3R8 1,300
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFHE 13,641
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BREERADER 13,947
Net assets BESFE 13,947
EQUITY E=
Issued capital BEITRA 95
Reserves ] 13,852
Total equity I G 13,947
Note: Kiat
The summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AATUEEREWLT -
Share
premium Retained
account earnings Total
B ERR REBR “st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREETTT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 201551 A18 = = =
Issue of new shares (note 24 (a)) BATHR (H7t24(a)) 14,533 - 14,533
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREE k2 EE1E4258 - (681) (681)
At 31 December 2015 2015412 H31H 14,533 (681) 13,852
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR (])

31 December 2015 20154128318

34. Event After the Reporting Period
On 1 February 2016, all the shareholders of the Company passed a
written resolution to conditionally adopt a Share Option Scheme and
details of which are set out in Appendix VIl to the Prospectus.

35. Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of Directors on 30 March 2016.

2015 3R

34.

35.

REHERER

2016%F2 A1 8 » ARRIFTAREBASEIRZE
RE GG RNBIVERE] - FHEERBRER 8%
t °

B R ER
B HmAER2016F3 A30B EEF 2 & MR
REFI)EE -
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Definitions

" affiliate”

[EfEAL]

"AGM"
[RRBFAR ]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

[ARRY ekl AE A= A2 ARA

"Beijing Ziguang”
[HEmERH ]

“Board”
5=

"Bruschettini”
[ B Hfri |

“Cayman Companies Law”

[RE2ESAEDEA]

“CFDA"

“China” or “the PRC"
[

“Company” or “our Company” or
“the Company”
NN

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person

B MR RIE T A TR A B R s MR sk B4R F A T B R R A
FEHIEE HE A AT

annual general meeting of the company

RARIBRRBFRE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
ARARER20165F2 A1 BB R ERMR A ZERZ 4R (K TEHERT)

Beijing Ziguang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Jt WK EBH R A F]), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC
IEREABEFRAT - RHEFRKZOERAA

Board of Directors

=g

Bruschettini S.r.l., a limited company incorporated in the Italian Republic

BHTBAZER - REANAEMBEZEMAZINERAF

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FEFSENIE228 (1961 FE35EM) R RVA(2013FERTIR) » KAPEHERT
SR 7R S A Bt 75 BB

China Food and Drug Administration (FEAREFMEEREREREEE
IE 48 [3) established in March 2013, the successor of State Food and Drug
Administration

2013F3AXRUMAEARKNBERE MEREEERAR  IIFRERREM

fi O EE S
EmEER

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this prospectus,
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

FEARKME - AERETTEEELS  RFIFRITREREE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (4RI E 29425 AR 2 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March
2015

NBEREHERER AR - R2015F3A 16 B EFREF ST MK ZNEREER

NGl
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Definitions (Continued)

= (&)

“Controlling Shareholders”

[ =R AR

“customer relationship management system*

or "CRM system”
[ZFBEREERS K CRMESE]

“Director(s)”

2%

"ERP information management system”

[ERPIZEBIERA]

“Foscama”

[1&HTR35 ]

noon noou

“Group”, “our Group”,

n nou

we"”, “us”, or “our”

[ZRE |~ [3RAPT ISRl TR

the Group”,

“HK$"
&l
"HKSE”

[ BB ]
“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”
[BEBRAFEROE]

2015 3R

Mr. Huang and Risun
454 KRisun

a system for managing a company’s interactions with current and future
customers, which often involves using technology to organise, automate, and
synchronise sales, marketing, customer service, and technical support
ER-—RAFEARFRARTFEBNZSL - BE P RFEARKMAS - 881t
RRFHE - & - TP RE LR IE

the director(s) of the Company
NRARES

a business management software that a company can use to collect, store,
manage and interpret data from many business activities

RAEAAREE - f#fF  BEEROTZREFREZDEIENEBERRMT

Biomedica Foscama Group S.p.A., a limited company incorporated in the lItalian
Republic
Biomedica Foscama Group S.p.A. * A E AR FIBE =M B R A A

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
ARRAE R AR E A FA R (BRI RIE B B A R 2R~ R ATE B M
= MEEMB QR RER S GRIERME )KL ER

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BEEEER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARHMABRAA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBRRITTHER

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

EEPRBESFBRLARAR
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Definitions (Continued)

= (A

“Human Albumin Solution”

[AMAZE R

"IFRS"
[ BIFR B F5 3R S22 RI )

“Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences”

GEEL L

“Liaoning Wanijia”

v T e =

[EEEZ ]

“Linzhi Ziguang”
(M5

“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Rules”

[ ErmsRall

“Main Board”

[ER]

“Medochemie”

ESER:ES

“"MPCM"
[ pEREEER]

“Mr. Huang”
[EAEAE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

refers to Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes
of total protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250
grammes of total protein per litre). The term Human Albumin Solution refers to
both products or either one of them as the context requires

BRI EEMN20% AMBERTFR(BAS4EEH2007%) R25% A MMH
EHFSIR(BAESHED2507) c AMAZEEFSIRETNMIEEmMIE T —1&
(BFx®)

International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards,
amendments and the related interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board

RerEAR RSBmO R R - BRPBEREER - 5T MM E

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences (H B 9 88 13} 22 bt A BERR 9T )

FR [ AR B8 R R T FR B A ST P

Liaoning Wanjia Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (EEE R R BRI AR A
7)), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
FEERZRENEERAT  RARGEMKIHERAT

Xizang Linzhi Ziguang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (FEEIMEZ LA BEE AR S EDQ
aJ), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 17 November 2014, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

PRI KN EEERET AR © R2014F11 178 EFRBEEMAZHERA
A BRARAZZ2ENE AT

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the HKSE
M E BB PAIER ET

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BRBZ RS ETRA - B AEHERT ST

Main Board of the HKSE
BB R FTER

Medochemie Ltd., A limited liability company incorporated in the Republic of
Cyprus and an Independent Third Party
Medochemie Ltd. * RAZEHEEET KMBE MM BRAR - BUE=F

refers to marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and
promotion of pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers

ABELEREEMEHEERETNEN HEIREEE

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (&Z#£#7), our Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and one of our Controlling Shareholders

ERWEL  BANIE  TES  TREHRERRRZ —
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Definitions (Continued)

= (&)

"Qctapharma”

[R5 FEE3E |
“Prospectus”
[ |

"Reporting Period”
[#REH

“Risun”
[Risun ]

“RMB”
AR

"SFO"

48 R 0

“Share(s)”
[ A&7

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3R

“Share Option Scheme”

[FERtERt 8]

“Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals”
[70)1] B AR

“Sinco Biotechnology”

[ BRRPE A YR

“Trendful”
[#21E ]

2015 3R

Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
Confederation
Octapharma AG * R THE A L AR (D B IR A &)

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
RARIR20165F2 A29E HIEE B BRRE

the financial year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12 831 HILH B EE

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated under the laws of BVI
on 16 January 2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang

Risun Investments Limited * 7420151 A 16 A & # R m A & i A LB AR
NE REAEZEREHNNEAR

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

ARETT  hEEEEHS

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
EEERIESN BB S REEERD - ETRERISET

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each
AR RIPR A G ALEI{E0.0001 8 T HY & A

holder(s) of Shares
[NEESZ=DN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VII
to the Prospectus

RAFR2016F2 A1 BB G RNHBIRE 8] - H = 2R BARE
B DEER—MRER — D. EMhER — B2

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (P0)||ER| A 22 AR 5T /A 7)), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 1 April 2011
PO ERIREZEBREFAR - R2011F4 81 BEFRBEEMRKZIABR AR

Sichuan Sinco Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (P0)I|ERIZ AR AR A R), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 25 November 2013
POl AR AR AR AR - R2013F11 A25BEFBIFMA AR AR

Trendful Development Limited (2183 E AR A F]), a limited liability company

established in Hong Kong
RIBERBRAR] - REBIZNAR AR
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Definitions (Continued)

= (A

“U.S. dollars” or “US$” U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
=l ENEERBEEEEEET
“Vast Surplus” Vast Surplus Corporation Limited (5 Z &R /A &l), a limited company incorporated
[ME& ] in Hong Kong on 6 October 2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Huang
ERERDT - PR2004F10 A6 B EBBAMKLNBRAT - HELELER
B
“Wisen” Wisen Group Holding Limited, a limited company incorporated under the laws of
[Wisen | BVI on 16 January 2015 and wholly-owned by Liu Sichuan

Wisen Group Holding Limited * 7220154 1 7 16 B 1 58 /& 4 3 L B & sE A 2 /9
BRAR] - HEIB)I2EHSE

“Xinneng Q0" a dietary supplement registered with the CFDA, manufactured by Liaoning

[TEREEQq0 Wanijia, which is composed of Coenzyme Q,, an essential oil-soluble a ntioxidant
found in the human body, especially in the heart, liver, kidney and pancreas
BEEZ4EITNEREMEREEEREARTMNERBAE - BKiH Ak
Qio " RABAGERIROM - FFM - B RER) MERN L EREERS A

)

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate, ”, “close associate,” “connected — 7r KF A - RN FZESEFIEI) » [BEA | - [
person,” “connected transaction,” “controlling shareholder,” “core  Ef#A | - [EFEA 1) - [BHEX S ) - [FEERIZE | -

connected person,” “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have — [z EG:#EA 1| - [HIEB XA/ R L ERE | AL Fi7
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context  #3AllffhR 7 69)%ZE -

otherwise requires.

s

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, — FHE &2 « D3 - EISE#IE - 3B TR B XS5
regulations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the X EHIFZE o P EER « D« ExREE &
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC  jf5 « JEAEAIAA X 5 FE B H 3 W 225 B 1F IG5 - 1#
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English — f1 X &% 5% o

translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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